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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Notice is hereby given that the Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Members of AVIENCE
BIOMEDICALS LIMITED (formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited) (CIN:
U74999DL2019PLC359158) will be held on Monday, the 29th September, 2025 at 11.00 A.M. at the
registered office of the company situated at C-11, Block -C, Community Centre, Janakpuri A-3, West
Delhi, New Delhi-110058 India to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS -

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, together with the Reports of the
Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2 To ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2025-26:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following Resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the first proviso of sub-section (1) of Section 139 and other
applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules 2014, as amended from time to time, the Company hereby ratifies the appointment of M/s
HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
103523W/W100048) made in the 2nd Annual General meeting (AGM) as Auditors of the
Company to hold office from the conclusion of that AGM f{ill the conclusion of 7th AGM of the
Company, to be held in 2026, to examine and audit the accounts of the Company for the
Financial Year 2025-26 at such remuneration, as may be mutually agreed between the Board of
Directors of the Company and the Auditors"

‘3. To re-appoint Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary, Managing Director (holding DIN 02804625), who
retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To re-appoint Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary, Whole-Time Director (holding DIN 02804667), who
retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To Appoint Mr. Om Prakash Pal (DIN: 10841456) as an Independent Director
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with schedule IV
and read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, and other
applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
For Avience Biomedicals Limited For Avience Biomedicals Ltd.
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modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), Consent of the members, be
and is hereby accorded, to appoint Mr. Om Prakash Pal holding DIN: 10841456 as an
Independent Director on the Board of the Company w.e.f. September 29th, 2025 to hold the
office of the Board of Directors as an Independent Director for a term of Five consecutive years
from September 29t, 2025 upto September 28, 2030 (both days inclusive).”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
severally authorized to sign and execute all such documents and papers (including
appointment letter etc.) as may be required for the purpose and file necessary e-forms with
Registrar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds, and things as may be necessary to giving

effect to this resolution.”

For AVIENCE BIOMEDICALS LIMITED

(formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)

For Avience Biomedicals Limited

-

_ Managing Director

DHARAM DEO CHOUDHARY
Managing Director

DIN: 02804625

Flat-48, Suryodaya Apartment,
Pocket-8, Sec-17, Dwarka

Delhi- 110078, India

Place: New Delhi
Date: 04.09.2025

For Avience Biomgdicals Ltd.

ctor

RAM NAGINA CHOUDHARY

Whole Time Director

DIN: 02804667

Flat No B-411, The Patel CGHS Ltd Plot No -4,
Sector 4, Dwarka South West Delhi, New
Delhi-110075,India

-
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NOTES

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and
vote on his behalf. A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

2. Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received in the enclosed Proxy Form at the registered
office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the time fixed for the Meeting.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A
Member holding more than ten percent of total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights
may appoint a single person as Proxy and such person shall not act as a Proxy for any other person
or Shareholder.

4. A Corporate Member intending to send its authorized representatives to attend the Meeting in
terms of Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 is requested to send to the Company a certified
copy of the Board Resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on its behalf at the
Meeting.

5. Members/Proxies/ Authorized Representatives are requested to bring the attendance slips duly
filled in for attending the Meeting. Members are requested to write their Folio Number in the
attendance slip for attending the Meeting.

6. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the Meeting
and ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies
lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company. All documents referred to in the
Notice and accompanying explanatory statement are open for inspection at the registered office of
the Company on all working days of the Company between 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. up to the date of
the Annual General Meeting and at the venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.

7. A route map to the venue of the Meeting is not provided as the venue of the Meeting is at the
registered office of the Company which is generally known to its members.

8. Annual General Meeting will be convened at the Registered office of the company.

For AVIENCE BIOMEDICALS LIMITED
(formerly known as Avience Biontedicals Private Limited)

For Avience Biomedicals Limited For Avience Biopedicals Ltd. %
~ Managing Director iggctor
DHARAM DEO CHOUDHARY RAM NAGINA CHOUDHARY
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 02804625 DIN: 02804667
Flat-48, Suryodaya Apartment, Flat No B-411, The Patel CGHS Ltd Plot No -4,
Pocket-8, Sec-17, Dwarka Sector 4, Dwarka South West Delhi, New
Delhi- 110078, India Delhi-110075,India

Place: New Delhi
Date: 04.09.2025
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

Item No. 5:

It is proposed to appoint Mr. Om Prakash Pal as an Independent Director of the Company as per the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, considering his vast profile which can ensure the growth of the
business in the near future. The consent of the Board is given for the appointment of Mr. Om Prakash
Pal as an Independent Director of the Company on its meeting dated September 31, 2025 subject to the
approval of shareholders by way of passing Special Resolution.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Special Resolution.

None of the items of special business relates to or affects any other company, and the extent of
shareholding interest in that other Company of every promoter, director, manager, and key managerial
personnel of the first-mentioned company is not more than two percent of the paid-up share capital of
that Company.

-

For AVIENCE BIOMEDICALS LIMITED
(formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)

For Avience Biomedicals Limited For Avience Biomedicals Ltd.
~ Manaying Director ctor
DHARAM DEO CHOUDHARY RAM NAGINA CHOUDHARY :
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN: 02804625 DIN: 02804667 )
Flat-48, Suryodaya Apartment, Flat No B-411, The Patel CGHS I'td Plot No -4,
Pocket-8, Sec-17, Dwarka Sector 4, Dwarka South West Delhi, New
Delhi- 110078, India Delhi-110075,India

Place: New Delhi
Date: 04.09.2025
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AVIENCE BIOMEDICALS LIMITED

ATTENDANCE SLIP
Folio No. D.P. Id.* Client Id.*
INo. of Shares
Name of the Shareholder
\Address of the Shareholder -

I/ We hereby record my/ our presence at the 6 Annual General Meeting of the Company at
the Registered Office of the Company at C-11, Block-C, Community Centre, Janakpuri A-3,
West Delhi- 110058 on Monday, September 29, 2025, at 11:00 A.M.

Signature of the Shareholder / Proxy
NOTES:

a) You are requested to fill out this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of
the hall.

b) If you are attending the Meeting in person or by proxy, a copy of the Notice may
please be broughtby you/your proxy for reference at the Meeting.
*Applicable for investor(s) holding share(s) in demat form.

. | | For Avience Biomgdicals Ltd.
or Avience Biomedicals Limited

Managihg Director
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Form No. MGT - 11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of Company: Avience Biomedicals Limited
CIN: U74999DL2019PLC359158
Add: C-11, Block-C, Community Centre, Janakpuri A-3, West Delhi- 110058

Name of the member (s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID: -

I/We, being the member(s) holding........Equity shares of the above-named company, hereby
appoint

| B N T o (<
AdAress: ..o
Emailld: ..o
Signature: ......ovvvriiiiiiiiiee e

Or falling him/her

AdArESS: vttt it
E-mail Id: TP TP

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at 6" Annual ?
General Meeting of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company at C-11, Block-C,

Community Centre, Janakpuri A-3, West Delhi- 110058, on Monday, September 29, 2025, at

11:00 A.M. and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated

below:

For Avience Bionmedicals Ltd.

For Avience Biomedicals Limitec

% ctor
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ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2025, together
with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon;

2. To ratify the appointment of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2025-26;

To re-appoint Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary, Managing Director (holding DIN

02804625), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible, offers himself

for re-appointment

4. To re-appoint Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary, Whole-Time Director (holding DIN
02804667), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment

W

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To Appoint Mr. Om Prakash Pal (DIN: 10841456) as an Independent Director

AFFIX
REVENUE
STAMP

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at !

the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting. !

For Avience Biomgdicals Ltd.

For Avience Biomedical:

tor

-
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MR. DHARAM DEO CHOUDHARY MANAGING DIRECTOR CUM CHAIRMAN

MR. RAM NAGINA CHOUDHARY WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR

MR. JANARDAN PAL NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

MS. DEEPA CHOUDHARY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

MR. OM PRAKASH PAL
MR. PANKAJ SHARMA

KEY MANAGENIAL PERSONNEL -

MR. SAURABH VERMA CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER(CFO)
MR. MANOJ KUMAR COMPLIANCE OFFICER/COMPANY SECRETARY
REGISTERED OFFICE

AVIENCE BIOMEDICALS LIMITED

(CIN: U74999DL2019PLC359158)

C-11, BLOCK -C, COMMUNITY CENTRE,

JANAKPURI A-3, WEST DELHI, NEW DELHI-110058 INDIA
E-MAIL: CS@AVIENBIO.COM

ADDITIONAL UNIT
G-1, SECTOR-11, NOIDA, GAUTAM BUDHHA NAGAR
UTTAR PRADESH-201301

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/S HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (FRN 103523W/W100048)
3RD FLOOR, 52-B, OKHLA INDUSTRIAL AREA

PHASE III, NEW DELHI-110020

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY
M/S G.R. GUPTA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

23B, FIRST FLOOR, CHIRAG DELHI
NEW DELHI-110017

BANKERS '
> BANK OF INDIA
> CANARA BANK
> ICICI BANK LIMITED

> SIDBI For Avience Biomedicals Ltd

For Avience Biomedical o

s Limited
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 6t Board’s Report, along with the standalone and
consolidated Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows, for the
financial year ended March 31st, 2025.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024
(" in thousands) ( in thousands)
Revenue from operations 2,88,895.47 1,62,551.14
Other income 6,480.85 3,808.94
Total revenue 2,95,376.32 1,66,360.08
Total Expenses before Depreciation and amortisation expenses and 2,12,377.43 1,30,307.35
Finance costs
Profit before Depreciation & Amortisation, Finance costs and Tax 82,998.89 36,052.73
expense
Less: Depreciation & Amortisation expenses 7,494.78 4,447.98
Profit before Finance costs and Tax expense 75,504.11 31,604.75
Less: Finance costs 6,101.68 4,113.33
Profit before Tax expense 69,402.43 27,491.42
Prior period items 750.00 -—
Tax expenses:
Current tax ’ 18,097.83 7,015.34
Tax adjustment related to earlier years 40.51 29.50
Deferred tax 491.57 434.59 2

Total Tax: 18,629.91 7,479.43
Profit for the period from continuing operations 50,022.52 ,  20,011.99

For Avience Bio edicals Ltd.

irector
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COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE AND STATE OF AFFAIRS FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25

The Revenue from Sale of Products for the current year ended 31.08.2025 was Rs. 2,88,895.47 thousand against
previous year’s sales of 'Rs. 1,62,551.14 thousand, registering growth of about 77.73% over the previous year.
The exports were Rs. 52,429.76 thousands in F.O.B in terms of manufacturing goods as compared to Rs. 5918.48
thousands in the previous year.

The Directors are very glad to inform that they are planning company’s Initial Public Offer (IPO)* in the
financial year 2025-26, and such a great increase in revenue is a sign that_it is making appreciable progress
towards its growth and operations.

*IPO, or Initial Public Offering, is a process through which a company allots shares to the public for the first
time, becoming a publicly traded company. It allows a company to raise capital from public investors, which
can help it grow faster and expand. It also gives the public the opportunity to invest in the company and
potentially earn a return on their investment.

During FY 2024-25, the Indian medical and diagnostic instrument sector is experiencing high economic activity
due to strong underlying demand, technological advancements, and government support for indigenous
manufacturing. The growth is driven by factors such as expanding diagnostic and pathology centers, the
adoption of miniaturized and advanced technologies, and a push for personalized and preventive healthcare.
However, effective implementation of government policies, particularly the 'Made in India' preference, and the
need for increased skill development and industry-academia linkages remain challenges.

The Indian healthcare market, which was valued at US$ 110 billion in FY16 is now projected to reach US$ 638
billion by FY25. The healthcare sector, as of FY24, is one of India’s largest employers, employing a total of 7.5
million people. The demand for Indian healthcare professionals is expected to double nationally and globally
by FY30 due to a shortage of healthcare workers in India, where there are only 1.7 nurses per 1,000 people and
a doctor-to-patient ratio of 1:1,500 nationwide.

The government has allocated Rs. 99,858 crore (US$ 11.50 billion) to the healthcare sector in the Union Budget
2025-26 for the development, maintenance, and enhancement of the country's healthcare system. This reflects a
9.78% increase from the previous allocation of Rs. 90,958 crore (US$ 10.47 billion) in FY25. The Indian
government is planning to introduce a credit incentive programme worth Rs. 50,000 crore (US$ 6.8 billion) to
boost the country’s healthcare infrastructure.

The Net Worth of the Company as at 31.03.2025 was Rs. 204056.13 thousand (Previous Year Rs. 60,689.11
thousand).

Status of Investments made in the erstwhile Subsidiary Company M/s DR Meditech Surgical & Diagnostics
(India) Private Limited. Both companies are working under same sector and for better operations and for
more econontical production in near future, the DR Meditech Surgical & Diagnostics (India) Private Limited
were purchased by Avience Biomedicals Private Limited as on 8t August 2023. ’

"Consolidated Financial Statements" as per Accounting Standard 21/IndAS issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, are prepared and proper filings will be made with the regulatory authorities.

For Avience Biomed; For Avience Biofhedicals
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DIVIDEND

Your Directors feel that it is prudent to plough back the profits for future growth of the Company and do not
recommend any dividend for the year under review.

TRANSFERS TO RESERVES

As per the latest books of accounts no transfer to reserves has been made by the company during the financial
year 2024-25.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 134 (3) (c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors, to the
best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them and

based on the internal controls, compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, make the
following statement that:

i in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2025, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

ii. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

iii.  the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

\2 the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
generally such internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

vi.  the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by
the Company, the work performed by the statutory and officers and external consultants, Board is of the

opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and reasonably effective during FY 2024-
2025.

For Avience Biomedicals Limited For Avience Biomedicals Ltd.
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DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the current financial year, following changes have occurred in the composition of board of directors
and key managerial personnel.

Name DIN/PAN Designation Date of appointment Date of
~ resignation

Mr. Manoj Kumar 01259772 Independent director 23.08.2024 29.11.2024
Agrawal
Mr. Pankaj Sharma 07077130 Independent director 23.08.2024
Ms. Deepa 09267149 Executive Director 23.08.2024
Choudhary
Mr. Ram Nagina 02804667 Whole Time Director 23.08.2024
Choudhary
Mr. Dharam Deo 02804625 Chairman 23.08.2024
Choudhary
Mr. Janardan Pal 08647037 Non-Executive 23.08.2024

Director
Mr. Saurabh Verma ANAPV8729] CFO 21.08.2024
Mr. Manoj Kumar BJEPK4202] Company Secretary 24.09.2024
Mr. Om Prakash 010841456 Independent director 29.11.2024
Pal

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations under Section 149(7) of the Act, that they
meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act. They have confirmed that they
are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exists or may be reasonably anticipated, that could
impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgement and without
any external influence.

None of the Director of the Company are disqualified from being appointed as Directors as specified under
Section 164(1) and 164(2) of the Act read with Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of
Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force), Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) or any other such statutory authority and they have
given their consent in writing to act as Director(s).

For Avience Bio edicals Ltd.
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The current composition of board of directors and key managerial personnel as on 31.03.2025 as follow:

Name DIN/PAN Designation Date of appointment

Mr. Dharam Deo 02804625 Chairman cum 23.12.2019

Choudhary Managing Director

Mr. Ram Nagina 02804667 Whole Time Director 23.12.2019

Choudhary

Mr. Janardan Pal 08647037 Non-Executive Director 23.12.2019

Mr. Saurabh Verma ANAPV8729] Chief Financial Officer 21.08.2024

Ms. Deepa Choudhary 09267149 Executive Director 23.08.2024

Mr. Pankaj Sharma 07077130 Independent Director 23.08.2024

Mr. Manoj Kumar BJEPK4202] Company Secretary 24.09.2024

Mr. Om Prakash Pal 010841456 Independent 29.11.2024
(Additional Director)

RETIRING DIRECTORS

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary and Mr. Ram Nagina
Choudhary will retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and being eligible, seek re-
appointment. The Board recommends their re-appointment.

DISCLOSURES RELATED TO COMMITTEES AND POLICIES

DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR COMPANY HAD CONSTITUTED THE FOLLOWING COMMITTEES:

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE
Audit Committee consisting of following directors:

Name of the Director Designation in| Nature of Directorship
Committee
Mr. Om Prakash Pal Chairperson Independent Director
Mr. Pankaj Sharma Member Independent Director
Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary Member Managing Director

The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor and provide effective supervision of the
Management’s financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest )
levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting.

mpdicals Ltd.
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2. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Nomination and Remuneration Committee” consisting of following directors:

Name of the Director Designation in| Nature of Directorship
Committee _

Mr. Om Prakash Pal Chairperson Independent Director

IMr. Pankaj Sharma Member Independent Director

Mr. Janardan Pal Member Non-Executive Director

The primary objective of the Committee is formulating the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes, and independence of a director and recommending to the Board a policy, relating
to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel, and other employees. Every
appointment of a Director, evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge, and experience on the Board,
preparing a description of the role and capabilities required.

3. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE
Stakeholders Relationship Committee consisting of following directors:

Name of the Director Designation in Committee | Nature of Directorship
Mr. Janardan Pal Chairperson Non-Executive Director
Mr. Om Prakash Pal Member Independent Director
Mr. DharamDeoChoudhary Member Managing Director

The primary objective of the Committee is resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed
entity including complaints related to the transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual
reports, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings, etc.

DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR COMPANY HAD ADOPTED THE FOLLOWING POLICIES:

o

Policy on disclosures and internal procedures for the prevention of insider trading;

Policy on code of conduct for directors and senior management;

Policy on code of practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price-sensitive

information;

Policy on whistle blower and vigil mechanism; !
Policy on related party transactions;

Policy on the preservation of documents and archival of documents;
Policy on the prevention of sexual harassment;

Policy for materiality for disclosures of events to stock exchanges;

9.  Policy on code for independent directors and policy on familiarization of independent directors;
10. Policy on code of conduct by the employees;

L
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11. Policy on information technology (IT);
12.  Policy on risk assessment & controls;
13.  Policy on staff grooming.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
During the year 2024-2025, Twenty Nine (29) Board Meetings were held by giving proper notices. Relevant
details of all the meetings are given in the Annexure-1 and forming part of the this report. The Company has

complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on meetings of the
Board of Directors and General Meetings.

MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEES
During the year 2024-2025, following committees meetings were held:

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Number of meetings held 3

- Attendance
Total Number of
. Number of
. directors/members . Name of Absentee o
Date of meeting directors/members p %o of attendance
as on the date of Directors/Members
: attended
meeting
10/12/2024 3 3 NA 100
14/12/2024 3 3 NA 100
08/03/2025 3 3 NA 100
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Number of meetings held 1 Attendance
Total Number of
. Number of
; directors/members . Name of Absentee
Date of meeting directors/members : % of attendance
as on the date of Directors/Members
: attended
meeting
10/12/2024 3 3 - NA 100
STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE MEETINGS
Number of meetings held 1 Attendance
Total Number of
. Number of
; directors/members . Name of Absentee
Date of meeting directors/members : % of attendance
as on the date of Directors/Members )
: attended
meeting
10/12/2024 3 3 NA , 100

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
on meetings of the Committees.

For Avience Bio dicals Ltd.
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INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)
Company is not required to transfer any amount and any shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF) during the financial year.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors
including determining qualifications, independence of a Director, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior

Management Personnel and their remuneration as part of its charter and other matters provided under Section
178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate internal control systems inter alia including system of internal financial controls,
commensurate with the size and scale of its business operations. The system of internal financial control strives
to ensure that all transactions are evaluated, authorized, recorded and reported accurately and that all assets
are safeguarded and protected against losses that may arise from unauthorized use or disposition. Based on
the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems put in place by the Company, and the
reviews performed by management, the board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls
were adequate and effective during the financial year 2024-25. The company_will further strengthen its Internal
Financial Controls in areas observed by the Auditors.

AUDITORS

M/s. HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No. 103523W/ W100048) were
appointed as the Statutory Auditors at 2°d Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held in the year
2021, from the conclusion of 2nd AGM till the conclusion of 7tn AGM of the Company to be held in the year
2026.

AUDITOR’S QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS

Auditors comment: The Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory due including Goods and Services tax (GST), provident fund,
employee’s state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty
of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to
it, though there has been a slight delay in few cases. (Clause vii(a) of Annexure 1 of
Independent Auditors Report)

Management Reply: As members can see in previous records or reports, that the company is a law
compliant entity but sometimes due to technical issues the filing got delayed in
few cases. Further we assure to stick on the due dates and do the filing within
prescribed time. -

For Avience Biorledicals Ltd.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to our company for the year ended
31.03.2025.

STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY OF THE COMPANY: -

The Company has a risk assessment & controls policy, duly approved by the Board to identify and mitigate the
risk involved in the functioning of the business. The Company understands that risk evaluation and mitigation
is an ongoing process within the organization and the Board of Directors is fully committed for identification
and mitigation of risk. In the opinion of the Board, as on date there are no material risks which may threaten
the existence of the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 during the year under review and hence the said provision is not applicable.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company during the FY 2024-25 with related parties
were on an arm'’s length basis. The material transactions which took place during the year are disclosed in
AOC 2 and given in the Annexure-2, forming part of the this report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN
FUTURE -

There are no material orders passed by the regulator or courts or tribunals which may impact the going
concern status and future operations of the Company.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred
between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate.

However there are following changes made which may affecting the financial position of the Company in the
near future:

Since the company is planning its IPO soon, therefore many appointments were made in August 2024. The
company had appointed Independent Director, Chairman, Whole-Time Director, Executive and Non-Executive
Director(s), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary (CS) to comply with IPO requirements.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS
There is no change in the nature of the business during the financial year under review.

-
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ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of The Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Section 134 (3) (a), the copy of Annual Return can be accessed on the website
of the Company at www.avienbio.com.

SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Since the company had invested in DR Meditech Surgical & Diagnostics (India) Private Limited in August 2023
and acquired 99.99% equity shares, now the said company became its subsidiary within the meaning of the
Companies Act, 2013 and AOC 1 forms part of the report and attached as Annexure-3.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS -

During the reporting financial year appointments were made in terms of Section 149 of the Act. Two qualified
and experienced professionals were appointed as independent directors in the management of the company as
on 23.08.2024.

Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 01259772)

Mr. Pankaj Sharma (DIN: 07077130)

However Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal (DIN: 01259772) had resigned as on 29.11.2024 and Mr. Om Prakash Pal
(DIN: 010841456) was appointed as on 29.11.2024 as independent director at his place. The current composition
of independent director as on 31.03.2025:

Mr. Pankaj Sharma (DIN: 07077130)

Mr. Om Prakash Pal (DIN: 010841456)

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations under Section 149(7) of the Act, that they
meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and relevant rules made
thereunder.

The Independent Directors of the Company have undertaken requisite steps towards the inclusion of their
names in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, in
terms of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the requisit.é expertise and experience and are
persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill the conditions specified in the Act as well as the Rules made
thereunder and are independent of the management.

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION & PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
There was no employee in the Company whose particulars are required to be given under Rule 5 (2) of

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to
time.

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The company had establish a vigil mechanism through the “Whistle Blower Policy” for directors and

employees to report concerns of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s
Code of Conduct under section 177 (9) & (10) of the Companies Act 2013. The copy of policy can be accessed on
the website of the Company at www.avienbio.com. !
or Avience Biorfledicals Ltd.
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DISCLOSURE OF THE MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS UNDER SECTION 148:
The maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of
the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company for the FY 2024-25,

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 '

As per the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 (“the Prevention of Sexual Harassment Act”), the Company has formulated a Policy on

associates. Further, the Policy also gives shelter to contract workers, probationers, temporary employees,
trainees, apprentices of the Company and any person visiting the Company gt its office.

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules framed
thereunder.

There was no complaint received from any employee during the financial year 2024-25 and hence, no
complaint is outstanding as on March 31st, 2025 for redressal.

DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit Rules) 2014,

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

As required by the Companies (Matters to be included in the Report of Board of Directors) Rules 2014 the
relevant information and data is given in Annexure-4 annexed hereto and form part of this Report.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES -

Company had made an application to dematerialize its securities on NSDL in March 2024, ISIN is allotted to
the company during the financial year 2024-25 i.e. INEOV9I01017. The Company shares are being dealt in
dematerialized form., Shareholding of the Promoters / Promoter Group has been substantially dematerialized.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS s

The Company lays emphasis on all round development of its human resource. The industrial relations
remained cordial during the year.

v
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THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH
THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

During the period under review, there were no application made or any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS
OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

As the Company has not done any one-time settlement of loan during the year under review. Therefore, the
clause is not application to the Company. -

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors places on record their sincere gratitude and appreciation for all the employees of the
Company. Our consistent growth has been possible through their hard work, solidarity, cooperation, and
dedication during the year.

The Directors acknowledge with thanks the continuous support and co-operation received from Bankers,
Statutory Auditors, Customers, Suppliers, Dealers, Government Authorities and Regulators and all other
business associates.

he Management also place on record their appreciation for the confidence reposed by the Stakeholders. The

T
Directors appreciate and value the contributions made by each and every member and Stakeholder of the
Company.
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MEETINGS OF MEMBERS/CLASS OF MEMBERS/B

AVICILC DIOHCUICald Limitea

(Formaly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)

Annexure-1

OARD/COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS
Number of meetings held 7 | ) Attendance
oA ® | Daeormesing | member it | Nemberot | sottomt
attend meeting
cfé‘i‘ia?ﬁ;’e‘iiyg 20705/ 2024 4 4 100
ggrii;?ﬁﬁgg 26/06/202 7 7 100
C}izexrtlz;cl)lr\/clleiﬁi;yg 06/ 07y 2024 7 7 100
52‘51?3222% %00/ na 7 7 100
(ggx:rei;?li/cll:e‘?i;yg B/08/2024 2 T7 26.92
i:‘ez:tr;:;al General 30/09/2024 o ; s
C];::I:Zia(l)ﬁ:e\;;yg 16/11/2024 33 7 2121
BOARD MEETINGS
Number of meetings held 29 Attendance

Date of meeting

Total Number of
directors as on the

Number of directors

Name of Absentee

% of attendance

date of meeting attended Director
11/04/2024 3 3 NA 100
01/05/2024 3 3 NA 100
o For Avience Biomedicals Ltd.
For Avience Biomedicals Limited
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21/05/2024 3 3 NA 100
27705/ 2024 - 2 - -
30/05/2024 " 2 NA 100
11/06/2024 s 3 NA 100
12/06/ 2024 ) 3 NA 100
19/06,/2024 3 3 NA 100
21/06/2024 R s - A 100
03/07/2024 s 3 NA 100
21/07/2024 5 " i -
03/08/2024 " R - p—
09/08/2024 s ) NA 100
16/08,/2024 3 3 NA 100
21/08,/2024 3 3 NA 100
28/08,/2024 8 6 NA 100
09/09/2024 6 6 NA 100
11/09/2024 6 6 NA 100
24/09/2024 6 6 NA 100
23/10/2024 6 6 NA 100
29/11/2024 5 5 NA 100
03/12/2024 6 6 NA 100
10/12/2024 6 6 NA 100
14/12/2024 6 & NA 100 !
19/12/2024 6 6 NA . 100
21/01/2025 6 6 NA 100
28/01,/2025 6 6 NA 100
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Annexure-2
FORM NO. AOC-2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the Company with the related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length
transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in td"during the year ended March 31,
2025, which were not at arm's length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm'’s length basis:
Following transactions were entered in to during the year ended 31st March 2025, which were at Arm’s

length.
Salient features of Amount (In
Name of related party and nature of contract/arrangements/ v
S.No. ; < : : . . Rupees) net of
relationship transactions, including value if taxes
any
Issue of equity shares on
Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary, premium
L Managing Director Board Approval: 21/08/2024 LISTL0
Member Approval: 23/08/2024
Issue of equity shares on
2 Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary, Whole- premium 15821200
Time Director Board Approval: 21/08/2024 e
Member Approval: 23/08/2024
. Legal and professiohal expenses
3 I]‘D/Iirrse'czerepa Cheudhacy, Execufive Board Approval: 21/08/2024 7,06,450
’ Member Approval: 23/08/2024
DR Meditech Surgical And Diagnostics Sale of products
4 (India) Private Limited, Board Approval: 21/08/2024 5,67,03,810
Subsidiary Company Member Approval: 23/08/2024
DR Meditech Surgical And Diagnostics Purchase of stock in trade
5 (India) Private Limited, Board Approval: 21/08/2024 1,28,87,350
Subsidiary Company Member Approval: 23/08/2024 ,
DR Meditech Surgical And Diagnostics Purchase of raw material
6 (India) Private Limited, Board Approval: 21/08/2024 5,64,750
Subsidiary Company Member Approval: 23/08/2024

For Avience Biomedicals Limited

For Avience Biomgdicals Ltd.
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Mr. Aditya Pal
Relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Remuneration
Board Approval: 21/08/2024 1,12,160
Member Approval: 23/08/2024

By order of the Board
For AVIENCE BIOMEDICALS LIMITED
(formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)

For Avience Biomedicals Limited

Managiag Director

DHARAM DEO CHOUDHARY
Managing Director

DIN: 02804625

Flat-48, Suryodaya Apartment,
Pocket-8, Sec-17, Dwarka

Delhi- 110078, India

Place: New Delhi
Date: 04.09.2025
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Annexure-3

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “B”: Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Com

and Joint Ventures

Amount in Rs.

panies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies

Name of subsidiary/associates/Joint Ventures

DR MEDITECH SURGICAL AND
DIAGNOSTICS (INDIA) PRIVATE

LIMITED

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2025

2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures/ Subsidiary
held by the company on the year end
Number 3,34,999 (Actual)
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint 5,72,98,230
Venture/Subsidiary
Extend of Holding% 99.99%

3. Description of how there is significant influence Subsidiary

4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not Not Applicable
consolidated

5. Net worth attributable to shareholdmg as per 8,00,25,577
latest audited Balance Sheet

6. Profit/Loss for the year 21200960

i Considered in Consolidation 21198840

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 2120

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.

By order of the Board

For AVIENCE BIOMEDICALS LIMITED

(formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited) 3

For Avience Biomedi

Is Limited

-«

Vi ;lif/ﬁq ng 4, ""CLOF
DHARAM DEO CHOUDHARY
Managing Director

DIN: 02804625

Flat-48, Suryodaya Apartment,
Pocket-8, Sec-17, Dwarka
Delhi- 110078, India

Place: New Delhi

Date: 04.09.2025

For Avience Biomadicals Ltd.

>

RAM NAGINA CHOUDHARY

Whole-Time Director

DIN: 02804667

Flat No B-411, The Patel CGHS Ltd Plot No -4 ,
Sector 4, Dwarka South West Delhi, New Delhi-
110075,India

or

0 Factory Aad.: G-1, Sector-11, Noida, Distt. Gautam Budh Nagar, Uttar Pradesh-201301
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- Annexure-4
(Forming Part of the Directors’ Report)

Statement containing particulars pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, for the year ended March 31, 2025.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
Company carries a business of manufacturing, import, export and trading of diagnostic instruments,
equipments, reagents and chemicals and other consumables and related activities. The Company has
always been conscious of the need to conserve energy in its Manufacturing plants which leads to
optimized consumption of non-renewable fossil fuels, energy, productivity, climate change mitigation,
and reduction in operational costs.

(i) Steps taken or Impact on conservation of energy:
Energy management is one of the key strategic areas in the Company’s pursuit of sustainability in its
operations. Energy consumption is not only the main source of emissions but also has its implication
on the cost of operations. The Company’s plant has been designed in such a manner so as to achieve a
high efficiency in the utilization of energy. These include reduction in power consumption, optimal
water consumption and eliminating excess use of paper etc.

The Company has taken the following initiatives in this regard: =

(i) Increasing energy efficiency: This primarily involves reducing, the quantity of energy used in our
operations by process optimization, using energy efficient technology, and conserving/recovering
energy through activities. ED lights provided in Plant & offices to save the electrical energy.

(ii) Energy efficient motors used in order to optimize use of power.

(ii) Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy
o During the year under review no alternative source of energy was used.
e As per directions of National Green Tribunal (NGT) the Company is using only electrical energy.

(iii) Capital Investment on energy conservation equipment
e Nil

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Technology absorption have became a very crucial matter towards development of products and
business in a company. They must adopt new technologies time to time for better results and
productivity, neglecting this step may lead to outdated technology which will harm the environment and

lead to losses in future to the company. Our company is trying to absorb with the updated technology
and have adopted the following measures for the same.
& *
(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption
(a) Efforts have been made to use only electrical system which will increase the productivity and
reduce the cost and Special focus has been given to develop safer formulations.
(b) Efforts were made for creating value addition to existing products.

(c) Efforts towards technology absorption included efforts were made for creating products of
premium range.

i i icals Ltd.
For Avience Biomedi }Limited For Avience Biomedical
\

% : irector

Mangging Director

0 Factory A:\dd.: G-1, Sector-11, Noida, Distt. Gautam Budh Nagar, Uttar Pradesh-201301



(ii) Benefits derived
(@) Improvements in existing products and formulations helped to increase product Sales.
(b) As a result of these efforts, the Company has been able to achieve higher production, with cost

optimization and better quality standards achieved.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO (' in Thousands)

2024-25 2023-24
Foreign Exchange earning 52429.76 5918.48
Foreign Exchange Outgo 5404.95 7951.99

By order of the Board
For AVIENCE BIOMEDICALS LIMITED
(formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)

For Avience Biomedicals Limited For Avience Biompedicals Ltd.

«

Manhaging Director rector
DHARAM DEO CHOUDHARY RAM NAGINA CHOUDHARY
Managing Director Whole-Time Director
DIN: 02804625 DIN: 02804667
Flat-48, Suryodaya Apartment, Flat No B-411, The Patel CGHS Ltd Plot No -4, Sector
Pocket-8, Sec-17, Dwarka 4, Dwarka South West Delhi, New Delhi-110075,India

Delhi- 110078, India

Place: New Delhi
Date: 04.09.2025
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Avience Biomedicals Limited (Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Op'inion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “standalone financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profits and its cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board Report including Management Discussion & Analysis, but does not
include the standalone financial statements, consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon. The Board Report including Management Discussion & Analysis is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information when it becomes available to us and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is

materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
Infe;mation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants Regn. No. AAC- 3768, a limited liability partnership registered in india (converted on 17th June, 2014
from firm Haribhakti & Co. FRM: 103523W)

3rd Floor, 52-B Okhla Industrial Area, Phase Ill, New Delhi - 110 020, India. Tel:+%1 11 4711 2999 Fax:+91 11 4711 9998

Registered office: 705, Leela Business Park, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 059, India.

Other offices: Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chennai, Hyderabad, Kolkata, Mumbai, Pune.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant
rules issued thereunder. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Continuation Sheet
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»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we report in “Annexure 1", a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025, and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure
2":

g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the

remuneration paid/ provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

T

A ILE N

Continuation Sheet




HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the question
of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company;

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

(v) The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the compliance
with section 123 of the Act is not applicable.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Haribhakti & Co LLP
Charted Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W/ W100048

—%‘5‘?“:‘\%\\

Kunj B. Agrawal _ =
Partner N\ ‘_\.‘_‘
Membership No. : 095829 .

UDIN: 250 45829Bmo1mY725F

Place: New Delhi

Date: :“*E_ a; &as
’

Continuation Sheet



HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Avience
Biomedicals Limited (Formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited) (“the
Company”) on the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025]

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
standalone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information,
explanations and written representation given to us by the management and the books of account
and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

i)
(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible Assets and accordingly, reporting under
clause (i)(a)(B) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company in the course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, all the Property, Plant and Equipment’s of the Company have been physically
verified by the management at reasonable intervals except for the assets held with third
parties; and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (including where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the
standalone financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(e) Based on the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated
during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(i)

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class
of inventory were noticed on physical verification carried out during the year.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits which is not in excess of five
crore rupees during the year, in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions, on the
basis of security of current assets. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of paragraph
3 of the Order is not applicable.

(iii) During the year, the Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, reporting
under clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities, where provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Act are required to be complied with. Accordingly, reporting under
clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable.
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(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a)

(b

(viii)

(ix)

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed
to be deposits within the provisions of the section 73 and 76 of the act and rules made
thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records for any of
the products of the Company under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules
framed there under. Accordingly reporting under clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax (GST), provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custems, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it,
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

No undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

There are no dues with respect to GST, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax and
cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

We have not come across any transaction which were previously not recorded in the books
of account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or payment

of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

or government or any government authority.

The Company has prima facie utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during
the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiary, The Company does not any associates or joint ventures as
defined under the act.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary. The Company does not any associates or joint ventures as defined under the
act,
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(x)
(a)

(b)

(xi)

The Company has not raised money by way of initial public issue offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, reporting under clause
(x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has made private placement of equity shares during the year and in our
opinion, the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act have been complied
with and the funds raised have been used for the purpose(s) for which they were raised.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried

(b

_—

—

(c

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xvi)

out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance
of fraud by the Company nor any fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the management.

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by
the auditors of the Company in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this repart.

There are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year and upto
the date of this report.

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, reporting under clause
(xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

All transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the details have been

disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

In our opinion, the Company is not required to have an internal audit system as per the
provisions of the Act. Hence, reporting under clause (xiv)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company has entered into non-cash transactions with the directors of the Company
during the year (refer note no 14.1 of financial statement), which in our opinion is covered
under the provisions of section 192 of the Act and has complied with the provisions of
section 192 of the Act, and for which approval has been obtained in a general meeting of
the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of

India Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting under clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable.

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment

(xvii)

(xviii)

Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (“Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xvi)(c) and (d) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly,
reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial

(xx)

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which cause us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of this audit report and that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence,
reporting under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable,

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Kunj B. Agrawal
Partner
Membership No.: 095829

UDIN: aﬂcaﬁgaaqﬁ" "

Place: New Delhi

Date: Tawne =, Seac
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in
our Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited) on the standalone financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2025.]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Avience
Biomedicals Limited (Formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited) (“the Company") as of
March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
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HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us , the Company
has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAI

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048
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Partner N
Membership No.: 095829 04007
UDIN: SE=S3q -0 WY 727
Place: New Delhi
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 '
CIN- U74999DL2019PLCI59158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Notes As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
EQUITY AND LIABILTIES
Sharehoiders’ funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus 3 40,312.56 32,845.00
4 163,743.57 27,844.11
Non-current liabilities 204,036.13 60,689.11
Long-term barrowings
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) % g it e
Lang term provisions 1,468.28 976.71
T 617.59 -
64,946.76 13,714.87
Current liabilities .
Short term borrowings 8 74,607.27 64,570.63
Trade payables 9
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 1,046.13 2,164.10
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
erterprises 48,969.45 39,735.22
Other current liabilities 10 23,M4.49 68,498.83
Short term provisions " 18,344.13 6,781. 11
166,681.47 181,750.09
TOTAL 435‘684. 36 256|15¢,0?
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
-Property, plant and equipment 12 88,124.14 68,026.11
- Capital Work in Progress 13 46,191.11 180.00
Hon-current investments 14 57,298.23 57,298.23
Long-term loans and advances 15 11,100.77 5,798.42
Other non-current assets 16 863.37 2,952.19
203,678.62 134,354.95
Current assets
Inventories 17 B81,381.94 78,613.86
Trade receivables 18 88,900.66 24,215.90
Cash and bank balances 19 47,539.63 2,021.26
Short-term loans and advances 20 13,767.13 16,730.92
Other current assets un 416.38 217.18
232,005.74 121,799.11
TOTAL 4&1 16 Eﬁ.i 54.07
Summary of significant accoun icies 2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

For Haribhakt! & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Avience Biomedicals Limited

ICAl Firm Registration No.:103523W/W100048 (Forme own as Avience Biomedicals Pgpvate Limited)

Kunj B. Agrawal . Dhar Choudﬁar; Ram Magina Manoj Kumar Saurabh Yerma
Partner \ Managing Director ‘Whole time Director ompany Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 095829 | . L . DIN: 02804625 DIN: 02804667 Membership No: FB737  PAN: ANAPVET29)
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New

Date: AN asr Seac . muw’m{ mm;ag{%kn{ bate: 2506 [ J02.C Date: 2 s'r;?}dcnf




Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLCI59158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes Yoarenied Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 2 288,895.47 162,551.14
Other Income 13 6,480.85 3,808.94
Total Income 295,376.32 166,360.08
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 13,475.4% 14,175.62
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 25 141,286.04 129,544.79
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in- 2%
rograss 3 Stk A tvade (2,904.45) (37,631.03)
Employee benefits expenses . 7 20,520.38 9,415.73
Finance cost i8 6,101.68 4,113.33
Depreciation expenses 29 7,494.78 4,447.98
Other expenses 30 19,999.97 14,402 24
Total expenses 225,973.89 138,868.66
Profit before prior period ftems & tax 69,402.43 27,491.42
Prior period items 32 750.00 -
Profit before tax 68,652.43 27,491.42
Tax expense
- Current tax 18,097.83 7,015.34
- Deferred tax 6 491.57 434.59
-Earlier year tax adjustment 40.51 29.50
18,629.91 7,479.43
Profit for the year 50|021.52 20,011.99
Earnings per equity share
Nominal Value of Rs.10 each (Previous year Rs.10 each)
- Basic and Diluted (Rs.) kT 13.19 6.09
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date.
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behaif of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Avience Biomedicals Limited
ICAl Firm Registration No.:103523W/W100048 (Forme as gvience Bi
Kunj B. Agrawal o D Deo Choudhary Saurabh Yerma
Partner Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 095829 DIN: 02804625 PAN: ANAPVET29)
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: Mew Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: 2J06 (402  Date: rfOgNIST  Dateufobiody”  Date: c?Sfobfdel

Date : &m ag‘e




Avience Biomedicals Limited

(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN- U74999DL2019PLCI59158

{All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Net Profit before tax 68,652.43 27,491.42
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense 7,494.78 4,447 .98
Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and equipment (87.81) (65.01)
Provision for gratuity 548,31 27.00
Provision for Doubtful Debts 1,365.29 -
Interest expense 5,300.75 3,928.15
Interest Income (201.62) (231.51)
Liability na longer required written back (256.98) (172.39)
Provision for compensated absences it.12 10.36
Operating profit before working capital changes 82,846.27 35,436.00
Adj for ch in working capital
{Increase)/Decrease in inventories (2,768.08) (43,178.43)
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (66,050.05) (6,143.68)
(Increase)/Decrease in short term loans and advances 2,963.79 (3,944.37)
(Increase)/Decrease in other non-current assets (276.00) .
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables B,371.24 29,355.00
Increase/ (Decrease) in current liabilities 12,838.59 (8,055.48)
Cash generated from/(use in) operations 37,927.76 3,469.04
Tax payment ,(net of refunds) (6,537.36) (1,155.80)
Met cash generated from/(used in) operating activities (4) 31,390.40 2,313.24
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipments (including capital advances) (79,218.96) (39,810.39)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 199.50 460,00
Proceeds from/( in) fixed dep more than 3 months maturity (2,791.13) (1,954.34)
Interest received 241 84.55
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (81,608.17) (41,220.18)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from short term borrowings 10,940.19 35,931.74
Proceeds from long term borrowings 49,219.18 5,530.99
Interest paid (5,625.44) (3,458.74)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 36,046.27 -
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 90,580.20 3§,005.99
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 40,362.43 (900.95)
Cash and cash equivak as at the beginning of the year 10.46 911.41
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 40,372.89 10.46

Notes:

1,Components of cash and cash equivalents (Note 19)

Balance with banks in current account
Cash on hand

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

40,028.5% B
344.30 10.46
40,372.89 10.46

2, The above Statement of Cash flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' set out in Accounting Standard - 3 * Cash Flow Statement”

Notes to the financials statements are integral part of the cash flow statement.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.:103523W/W100048

Kunj B Agrawal @ -

Partner
Membership No: 095829

Place: New Delhi

e NN A Se3E

For and on behall of Board of Directors of

Avience Biomedicals Limited

DIN: 02804625

Place: Hew Delhi

Date: ny%uo.lr

Ram Nagina
‘Whole Time Director
DIN: 02804667

Place: New Delhi

pate: 2§ {oefOS

pany Secretary
membership No: F8737

Place: New Delhi
Date: R fo |02

Saurabh Verma
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: ANAPVBTZ9J

Place: New Delhi
te: Dyfet/dad §T
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

BACKGROUND

Avience Biomedicals Limited (the "Company”) is a Delhi based company ventured into the products and solutions in molecular segment of diagnostics and
testing. The Company was incorporated on December 23, 2019 under the Companies Act, 2013 as a private limited company. Pursuant to a special
resolution passed in the extra ordinary general meeting of the shareholder of the company held on June 26, 2024, the company converted to a public
limited company, and consequently, the name of the company has changed to 'Avience Biomedicals Limited' vide new certificate of incorporation dated
September 03, 2024. The Company deals in various aspects of Molecular biotechnology, markers, genomics and IVD industry. The Company aims at

creating solutions that are on cutting edge with the latest advancements in the globe, having wide applications and that provide cost-effective solutions
for the rural and the needy.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis for preparation of Financial Statements

These Financial Statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act') read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021. These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis.

As the Company is in the process of listing its equity on SME stock exchange as per board resolution dated August 21, 2024, the Company ceased to
qualify as Small and Medium Sized Company during the current year.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the

Schedule IIl to the Act. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Indian GAAP requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at the reparted date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Although, these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ.
Any revision in accounting estimate is recognized prospectively in the period in which actual results are known.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sales of products is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods are transferred to the customer as per the terms
of the contract and are recognised, net of trade discounts, rebates, excise duties and taxes on sale, as applicable.
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' Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE or 'Assets’) are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working
condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its
previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing assets, including day to day repair and maintenance and cost of replacing
parts are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year during which such expenses are incurred.

Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at lower of book value and net realizable value as estimated by the Company and are
shown separately in the financial statements under other current assets. Loss determined, if any, is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit
and Loss, whereas gain or loss on sale of such assets is recognized only upon completion of sale thereof.

Depreciation
Depreciation on PPE has been calculated on pro-rata basis on straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as specified under

schedule Il to the Act except certain items of plant and equipment and electrical fittings which have been depreciated over the period of 10 years and 5
years respectively based on technical evaluation carried out by the management.

The useful life determined on the basis of management estimation is lower than the useful life prescribed in Part 'C’ of Schedule Il of the Act, as detailed
below:

pariteiilars Useful life (In years) on the basis Useful life (In years) as per
of Management Estimate Schedule Il
Plant and Equipment 10 15
Electrical fittings 5 10

The cost of leasehold land is amortised on straight line method over the lease period .Depreciation on addition ta property, plant and equipment is
provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment is
provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment,as the case may be.

Residual value @ 5% has been considered the purpose of calculating depreciation on property, plant and equipment.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An
impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted
average cost of capital.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Leases (as a Lessee)
Operating lease:
Lease arrangements, where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor, are recognized as an operating

lease. Lease payments under operating lease are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and recognized in the
year in which employee renders the related service.

Defined Contribution Plan

Employee State Insurance Corporation

In accordance with the provisions of the Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, eligible employees of the company are entitled to receive benefits to ESI,
a defined contribution plan in which both the company and the employee contribute monthly at a determined rate. The Company's contribution to ES! is

charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred. The company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly
contribution.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity

A defined benfits plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Benefits under Gratuity is defined benefit plan. Vesting

occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company’s obligation in respect of gratuity is calculated on actual basis equivalent to 15 days last
drawn basic salary for each completed year of service as on Balance sheet date.

Compensated Absences

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment constitute other long-term employee benefits, the liability of which is determined on the basis of last
drawn salary for unused, unexpired accumulated leaves as on Balance sheet date.

Inventory
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods
and work-in-progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads. Net realisable value is

the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

Taxes on income

Tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

i) Current tax
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the prevailing Income Tax laws.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the year. The deferred
tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in
future, However, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual
certainty supported by convincing evidence of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are written-
down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realized.
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provision

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not
discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligaticn arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises

from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

Contingent Assets

The Company does not recognize assets which are of contingent nature until there is virtual certainty of realisability of such assets. However,
subsequently, if it becomes virtual certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, asset and related income is recognized in the financial
statements of period in which the change occurs,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances with bank and demand deposits with original maturity upto 3 months.

Earnings per share- Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number

of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, share split or consolidation of shares,

Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign Currency transactions are recorded, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency, at the date of transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are translated at the exchange rates

prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are carried at the values that were determined on the
date of transaction,

Exchange differences either on settlement or on translation of transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Fi rly Known as Avk Bil dicals Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- UT4999DL2019PLC359158
{All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Share capital
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 7,000,000 70,000.00 5,000,000 50,000.00
Issued, subscribed & paid up equity share capital 4,031,256 40,312.56 3,284,500 32,845.00
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4,031,256 40,312.56 3,284,500 32,845.00
Reconciliation of equity shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Equity Shares
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 3,284,500 32,845.00 3,284,500 32,845.00
Shares Issued during the year 746,756 7,467.56 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,031,256 40,312.56 3,284,500 32,845.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of shares |.e. Equity Shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share,

Vating
Each holder of equity shares fs entitled to one vote per share held.

Dividends

The dividend propcsed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case where interim dividend is
distributed.

Liquidation

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Company does not have any holding company.
Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the shareholders Humber of shares % of holding Humber of shares % of holding
ws. Deepa Choudhary 438,400 10.88% 438,400 13.35%
M. Dharam Deo Choudhary 1,038,756 50.57% 1,707,940 52.00%
M. Janardan Pal 420,359 10.43% 431,359 12.83%
M. Ram Nagina Choudhary 842 370 20.90% T16,8Mm 21.87%
3,739,885 92.781203005713400% 1,284,500 100.00%

Details of shareholding of Promaters '

Shares held by promoters at the year ended March 31, 2025

Promoters: Ren Number of Shares | % of Total Equity share """"’wﬁ"""’"

Ms. Deepa Ci 438,400 10.88% 0.00%)|

M. Dharam Deo Choudhary 2,038,756 50.57% 15.37%)

M. Janardan Pal 420,359 10.43% (0. 24%)

M. Ram Nagina v 842 370 20.90% 17.52%)

Shares held by promoters at the year ended March 31, 2024

Promoters’ Name Nuembir of % of Total Equity st xchmg:‘::ruuth

e 438,400 13.35% 2.
1,707,940 52.00% 0.00%

421,359 12.83% 0.00%
716,801 21.82% 0. 00

Aggregate number of equity shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares during the period of five years | diately p g the Bal Sheet date:

During the financial year 2022-23, the Company issued 7,50,000 equity shares as fully paid-up bonus shares (having a face value of Rs, 10 each) out of reserves and surplus.

Aggregate nnmberoiequityshlresllmeumllymldupvdthmumtbetuwmmmﬁn‘wmdﬂnmmwmumldmem
date:

During the current year, the Company has alloted 4,58,385 number of equity shares @ Rs 125 per share (including premium of Rs 115 per share) to the shareholders of DR Meditech
Surgical and Diagnostics (1) Private Limited on account of acquiring their shareholding in DR Medictech Surgical and Diagnostics (1) Private Limited. Also, refer note no. 14.1

There were no securities convertible into equity/preference shares issued/outstanding at the year end (Previous year:Nil)
Calls unpaid including aggregrate value of calls unpaid by Directors and Officers: Nil (Previous year:Nil)
Forfeited shares:Nil (Previous year:Nil)




Avience Biomedicals Limited

(F Known as Avi Bis dicals Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158

(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)
4 Reserves and surplus

As at As at
March 11, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year 27,844.11 7.832.12
Add: Profit as per Statement of Profit and Loss 50,022.52 20,011.99
Balance as at the end of the year {A) 77,866.63 27,844.11
Securities Premium
Balance as at the beginning of the year . =
Add: Recefved during the year 85,876.94 -
Balance as at the end of the year (8) 85,876.94 .
(A) + (8) 163,743.57 27,844.11
5 Long Term Borrowings
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
Term Loans
-from Banks (refer note (a) (1), (al{if) and 8{iii)) 5,524.40 7,230,939
-from financial institution (refer {a)(iif) and (b)) 60,200.00 .
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (2,863.51) [1,706.12)
Deferred payment liablity (refer note 12(b))
- Pending Instaliments of Leasshold Land = 9,274.23
Less: Current maturities of deferred payment liablity - (2,060.54)
6286089 12,738.16_

Notes &
a) Terms of secured borrowings :

Term Loans from Banks :

i The Company has an ing working capital d loan of Rs 963.54 thousands as on March 31, 2025 obtained under Guaranteed Emergency Creditline 2gainst a sanctioned
limit of Rs 1,700 thousands on October 25, 2021 from Canara Bank, the loan was subsequently transferred to Bank of India in December, 2021.The loan s repayable through 36

Manthly Instaliments starting from November 13, 2023. The loan carrles interest (Repo Based Lending Rate (RELR) » 0.65%) of 9,75% per annum (Previous year : 5.90% per annum)
with monthly reset,

il} On September 05, 2023, the Company took a term loan of Rs é,422.86 thousands from Bank of India for acquistion of plant and machinery. The loan is repayable through 65

thly 1 ptember 30, 2023. This loan carries interest (Repo Based Lending Rate (RBLR) + 0.7C%per annum) of 9.80% per annum with monthly reset. The
amaunt of loan outstanding as at year end was Rs 4,560.86 Thousands.

Term Loan from financial insititution :

i) The Company tock a term loan from Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) for construction of new production facility at Plot No 70, Sector 28, Yamuna Express Way

Industrial Development Area. The sanctioned lmit of the loan fs for Rs.1,20,000 thousands, out of which 60,200 thousands availed during the year. The repayment of above loan will
start from Feburary 2026,

b) Nature of Security (Term loan from financial institution)
The loan obtained from SIDBI is secured against hypothecation of all the movables including plant & machinery, miscellaneous fixed assets, equipment, machinery spares , tools &
accessories and all other assets of the Company which have been acquired under the project and the land purchased by the Company at YEIDA, Plot No, Sector-28 Noida.

©) Also, refer notes 45,46 and 48

-This space has been Intentionely left blank---
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(ALl amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

6 Deferred tax liability
The tax effect of significant timing differences that reverse in one or more subsequent years gave rise to the following net deferred tax liability as at March 31, 2025, are as under:
Deferred tax liability:
March 31, 2025
As at Charge/(reversal) for As at
March 31, 2025 the year March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets arising on account of:
. diture allowable on pay basis 121.57 145.83 75.74
« Provision for doubtful debts 367.20 367.20 -
Total deferred tax asset (A) 588.77 513.03 75.74
—— = —
Deferred tax liability arising on account of:
- difference in written down value of property, plant and equipment as per Tax and the bocks of 1.057.05 1,004.60 1,052.45
account
Total deferred tax liabilities (8) 2,057.05 1 iom.so 1,052.45
Net deferred tax liabilities (B-A ) 1,468.28 491.57 976.71
—_— = =S
March 31, 2024
As at Charge/(reversal) for Asat
March 31, 2024 the year March 31, 2023
Deferred tax asse's arising on account of:
- di on basis 75.74 43.88 31.86
Total deferred tax asset (A) 75.74 43.88 31.88
Deferred tax lability arising on account of:
- difference in written down value of property, plant and equipment as per Tax and the books of 1,052.45 478.47 573.98
account
Total deferred tax Habilities (8) 1,052.45 A78.47 573,98
Net deferred tax liabilities (B-A ) 976.71 434.59 547.12
. e
7 Leng Term Provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for Ei S
Gratuity (Refer note no 35} 524.24 -
Compensated Absences 93.35 s
617.59 A
8 Short Term Borrowings As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note §) 2,863.51 3,767.06
Working Capital Loan from Bank (Refer note 1 & fif) 1,962.87 _
Cash credit from banks (Refer note i & i) 39,618.46 32,957.57
Unsecured, repayable on demand
-from related party (Refer note Iv) 30,162.43 27,846.00
74,607.27 64,570.63
Notes :-
i The Company has availed & short term working capital loan (standby letter of credit) from Bank of India in June, 2024 repayable in 11 equated monthly installment of Rs 960
thousands. Presently, Rate of interest is 11.33% p.a
ii) Terms of secured cash credit from
Cash Credit from bank is repayable on demand and carrles Interest rate of 1 year Repo Based Lending Rate(RBLR)+0.70% i.e. 9.80% jcurrent RBLR being 9.10%),
fii) Nature of Security ( for Term Loan, working capital loan and cash credit from bank )
Mature of charge

Ist charge - hypaothecation

Equitable Mortgage of residential property being FLAT No. B 411, 4th Floor, The Patel Cooperative Group Housing Society Limited
kngwns as Umiya Sadan, Plot No 4, Dwarka, Delhi- 110075 in the name of Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary (Director) and Mrs. Geeta

Choudhary (Relative of Director)

EQM (First Charge)

TOR of Rs 3,000 Thousands is in name of company or directors

Liened Marked

The lcan is also by the p of the following di and their relatives:-

1 Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary, Managing Director
2 Mr. Janardan Pal, Director

3 Wr. Ram Nagina Choudhary, Director

4 wrs. Geeta Choudhary, relative of Director

5 Mrs. Deepa Choudhary, Director
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(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Terms of unsecured loan from related parties :-
Loan from related party includes loan from directors of the €

v} Also, refer notes 45,46 and 48

9

10

n

pany which is

on

1 and is interest free.

Trade payables
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade payables
{a} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note no. 33) 1,046.13 2,164.10
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 48,969.45 39,735.22
50,2_15.5! 41‘“‘9.32
Trade Payables ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Unbilled [¢] ing for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-1 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
{1) MSME 300.00 T46.13 - * s 1,046.13
(i) Others 96.43 48,873.02 - 48,969.45
{iii} Disputed Dues - MSME - > 5 . -
iv} Disputed Dues - Others - - - =
Total 396.43 49,619.15 - - - 50,015.58
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Unbilled [} ding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(1) MSME 300.00 1,864.10 - - . 2,164.10
{Ii) Others 219.02 39,489.53 26.67 39,735.22
{1ii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - = = >
{iv) Disputed Dues - Others * = = =
Total 519.02 41,353.63 26.67 - - 41,899.32
Other current liabilities
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employees dues payable 1,264.73 B18.29
Directors’ remuneration payable 4,087.01 4.10
Directors sitting fees payable 117.00 .
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 238.95 607.09
Advance from customers
-from Related Party (Refer Note 36) 16,008.35 8,434.77
-from Others 1,476.66 1,040.00
Payable towards purchase of investment in subsidiary (refer note 14.1) - 57,196.23
Statutory dues payable 380.39 198.39
Interest payables to Micro and Small Enterprises (refer note 33) 141,40 87.96
23,714.49 G_SLSH_
Short Term Provisions
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision far Income Tax (Net of Advance tax of Rs, 16.49 Thousands) (Previous year : Rs 2,235,466 Thousands) 18,081.34 6,480.36
Provision for Emplayee benefi
Gratuity (Refer note no 35) 204.82 180,75
Compensated Absences 57.97 120.20
18 344 13 6!”1.”

«=+++ The space has been intentionally left blank -----
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(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
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(Al ts in Rs. Tt Is, unless otherwise stated)
12. Property, plant and equipment
March 31, 2025 :
Particulars Gross block Acc i depreciation Met block
As at Additions Deletion As at As al Depreciation for Deletion As at As at
April 1, 2024 March 31, 2025 | April 1, 2024 the year March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Right to use - Leasehold Land (refer note b) 17,048.99 - - 17,048.99 46.35 179.96 = 226,31 16,822.68
Plant and Equipment 55,726.05 17,827.81 353.94 83,199.92 6,466.27 6,852.40 42,25 13,276.42 69,923.50
|Computer 548.04 . . 548.04 268.73 121.23 . 389.96 158.08
Furniture & Fixtures 999.27 118.90 1,118.17 208.75 99.88 308.63 809.54
Office Equipment 755.43 19.49 - 774.92 348.48 146.85 495.33 279.59
|Electric Fittings 469.01 38.30 . 507.31 182.10 94.46 - 276.56 230.75
[Total 75,546.79 28,004.50 353.94 103,197.35 7,520.68 7,494.78 42,25 14,973.21 88,224.14
March 31, 2024 :
Particulars Gross block Accumulated depreciation Net block
As at Additions Deletion As at As at Depreciation for Deletion As at As at
April 1, 2023 March 31, 2024 | April 1, 2023 the year March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
Right to use - Leasehold Land (refer note b) - 17,048.99 - 17,048.99 - 46.35 - 46.35 17,002.61
Plant and Equipment 26,264.86 29,921.19 460.00 55,726.05 2,574.18 3,957.10 65.01 6,466.27 49,259.81
Computer Nz 176.34 = 548.04 144.63 124.10 - 268.73 279.31
Furniture & Fixtures 716.95 282.32 999.27 114,67 94.08 - 208.75 790.52
Office Equipment 693.81 61.62 755.43 206.56 141.92 348.48 406.95
Electric Fittings 270.50 198.51 - 469.01 97.67 B4.43 . 182.10 286.91
ITml 28,317.82 47,688.97 460.00 75,546.79 3,137.1 4,447.98 65.01 7,520,68 68,026.11

a) Addition to Plant and Equipment include equipments agreegating to Rs. Nil thousands (Previous year Rs. 1,316.01 thousands) purchased from a related party. Also refer nate 36.

b) During the previous year, the Company took a land on lease from Yamuna Expressway Industrial Development Authorities (YEIDA) for the purpose of setting up Biochemistry Analyser Plant under Industrial Scheme of YEIDA. The term of the
leasehold land is for the period of 90 years. As per the lease term, the Company has paid lease premium including incidental charges of Rs. 6,744.29 thousands upfront and the balance amount s payable in 10 equal half-yearly installments of Rs.
1,030.47 thousands commencing October 17, 2023, The Deferred payment liabilities represents the balance lease premium payable by the Company. During the current year, the Company has fully paid the balance installments of leasehold land.

¢) The Plant and Equipments include the assets having a Gross block of Rs. 69,385.16 thousands (Net Block Rs. 60,079.06 thousands) held with third parties [Previous year: Gross block of Rs. 42,438.90 thousands (Net Block Rs. 38,708.45

thousands. }].

d) All the Plant and Equipments of Noida Sector 11 production unit are hypocated against term-loan from the banks. (Refer Note 5)

e) Also, refer note -42

----- The space has been intentionally left blank -----




13 Capital Work in Progess
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(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024 -
Particulars As at Addition Capatalised during As at As at ition Capatalised during As at
April 01, 2024 the year March 31, 2025 April 01, 2023 the year Mareh 31, 2024
Building under construction 280.00 45,911.11 . 46,191.11 - 280.00 = 280.00
| Total 280.00 45,911.11 - 46,191.11 - 280.00 - 280.00
13,1 Aging of Capital work in progress as below :
As at March 31, 2025
Amount in CWIP for a period of
ital ki Total
APt etk In prgrass Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years|
Profects i prostess - Buflding 45.911.11 280.00 - - 46,191.11
Total 45,911.11 280.00 - 46,191.11
As at March 31, 2024
Amount in CWIP for a period of
ital Total
Capital work in progress Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3years  [More than 3 years
Projects in progress - Building 180.00 - 280.00
Total 280.00 - - - 180.00

13.2

The Company does not have any CWIP which is overdue or exceeded to its cost compared to its original plan.

---== The space has been intentionally left blank -----




Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

14 Non-current investments

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-trade, unquoted, at cost
Equity shares in subsidiary company
3,34,599 (previous year: 3,34,999) fully paid up equity shares of Rs.10 each held in

DR Meditech Surgical and D ics (india) Private Limited 57,198.23 57,298.23
Total 57,298.23 57,298.23
|Aggregate book value of unquoted non-current i 5 57,198.23 57,298.23
/Aggregate book value of quoted non-current investments and market value thereof =
Aggregate provision for diminuation in value of non-current | - E

There are no significant restrictions on the right of awnership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal,

14.1 During the previous year, the Company vide a share purchase agreement (SPA) dated August 08, 2023, purchased a total of 3,34,999 number

of equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up in

DR Meditech Surgical and Diagonestics (India) Private Limited (DR Meditech) (99.99% holding) from its shareholders Mr. Dharam Deo Chaudhary (2,42,499 equity shares) and Mr. Ram Nagina
Chaudhary (92,500 equity shares). As per the SPA, the shares were bought at Rs. 171.04 per equity share for a total consideration of Rs. 57,298.23 thousand. During the current year, the
Company has paid the purchase consideration by way of fssue of 4,58,385 number of its own equity shares @ Rs 125 per share (including premium of Rs 115 per share) aggregating to Rs
57,298.13 thousands and fraction of Rs 100 in cash. On account of such purchase of equity shares by the Company, DR Meditech Surgical and Diagonostics (India) Private Limited has become

a wholly owned subsidiary of Company w.e.f August 08, 2023,

15  Long term loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Capital advance*

“Includes an amount of Rs 6,817.93 thousands (Previous year : Rs 5,798.42 th

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
11,101.77 5,798.42
11,101.77 5,798 42

ds) paid by the Company in respect of an Industrial Land alloted under Udyog Bandu Nivesh Mitra at

Greater Noida for a lease period of 90 years as per allotment letter dated October 16, 2020, Out of total value of land, Rs. &,817.93 thousands. (including interest of Rs.1044.03 thousands)
has been paid by the Company as on March 31, 2025 and balance amount s payable in 2 half yearty installments of Rs 506.59 thousands and fis 486.74 thousands due June 15, 2025 and

December 15, 2025 respectively. The possession of the land is yet to be recefved.

15.1 No receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with other person or from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner,

director or a member,

16 Other Non-Current Assets

Unsecured, Considered Good, unless otherwise stated
Security Deposit
Fixed deposits with banks having more than 12 menths maturity*

‘rep the fixed d hypoth i/liened against loan and bank guarantees

17 Inventories (Valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower)

Raw Materials and packing material*
Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Stock-in-trade*

" Individual items in value do not amount for more than 10% of total value

---=- The space has been intentionally left blank -----
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As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
626.00 350.00
237.37 2,602.19
863.37 2,952.19
Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
9,817.81 9,954.18
10,662.38 640.21
12,603.80 5,129.0
48,297.95 62,890.46
81,381.94 78 613.85
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(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
considered good £8,900.66 14,115.50
considered doubtful 1,458.99 149.72
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (1,458.99) (149.72)
ulm‘ -1} 24,215.90
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedul
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Outstanding for following pericds from due date of payment
Less than & months ¢ 1“':::‘:’- 1-2 years 2-1 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables
darad B8O, 464,49 3,051.54 1,345.36 1,080.16 85,941.85
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables
idered doubtful - 2.29 1.4 33.70
l:&“""“‘ed Trade Recelvables considered 653.41 536.00 1,202.89 566.51 ; 2,958.81
(iv) Disputed Trade R ables considered v
etul 515.52 B849.77 &0.00 1,425.29
Total 81,117.90 3,587.84 3,063.77 2,518.73 .41 90,359.65
Less: Provision for doubtiul debts (515.52) (872.06) (71.41) (1,458.59)
Total trade receivables 81,117.90 3,587.64 2,548.25 1,646.67 ’ 88,500.66
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than & months 6 months- 1-2 years 1-3 years More than 3 years Total
1 year
{1) Undisputed Trade Receivabl
considered 18,654.16 1,600.58 2,961.16 - 24,215.90
(if) Undisputed Trade Recsivables =
idered doubtful 22.29 127.43 149.72
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables considered s ‘
fgood :
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered 3 N
doubtful
Total 18,654.16 2,600.58 2,983.45 127.43 - 24,365.62
Less: Provision for doubtful debts - - 22.29) (127.43) (145.72)
[Total trade receivables 18,654.18 2,600.58 2,961.16 - - 24,215.90

partner, director or a member.

19 Cash and Bank balances

Balances with banks;
-0n current account

Cash on hand

Other Bank Balances:

18.1 No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the C

ampany either severally or jointly with other person or from firms or private companies in which any director s a

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 menths and remaining maturity upto 12 months*

“Includes fixed deposit of Rs 3,000.00 thousands (Previous year ; 2,000.00 Th

under lien,

20 Short term loan and advances

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Advance to suppliers

Advance to Employees

Balance with government authorities
Eamest Money Deposits

Prepald Expense®

Other Loan & advances

et d

“includes cost related to probable future SME IPO expenses of Rs 1,538.62 thousands (Previous year : Rs Nil)

partner, director or a member.
Other current assets

Interest accrued on fixed depasits

20.1 Mo trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

40,028.59 s
344,30 10.46
40,372.89 10.46
7,166.74 2,010.80
47,539.63 2,021.26

| security and Rs 10.80 Thousands (Previous year: Rs 10.80 Thousands) held

As at

___March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

800,58 965.30
692.98 7.87
10,449, 64 15,118.37
168,45 543.24
1,655,48 60.44

: 3.0
13,767.13 16,730.92

Jointly with other person or from firms or private companies in which any director is a

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
416.38 217.18
416.38 217.18
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless othenwise stated)

Revenue from operations For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of products (Refer Note 22.1) 287,832.97 162,551.14
Sale of Service 1,062.50 -
288,895.47 162 551.14
= =
Notes
Details of sale of products:
Manufactured
Viral Transport Solution 1,987.78 1,396.38
Rapid Cards 11,993.65 25,649.00
Reg and Lab Consumabl 47,644.68 2,353.14
Instruments 6,300.51 3,768.36
78,926.62 33,166.88
Traded
Instruments 75,525.75 43,375.17
Regents and Lab C b 133,380.50 86,009.09
208,906.35 129,384.26
Total 287,832.97 162,551.14
Other Income For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest income;
-0n bank depasit 201.62 231.51
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and transiation 590.40 73.73
Export Incentives 1,138.12 19.15
Other incentives and discounts 3,934.69 3,094.85
Liability no longer required written back 156.98 172.39
Gain on sale of Property, plant and eguipment 87.81 65.0
Insurance claim 66.08 -
Miscellaneous income 205.15 152.30
6.12&!5 3.808.94
Cast of material consumed For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

Raw Materials and packing material*

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Opening stock 9,954.18 4,406.78
Add: Purchases 33,339.12 19,723.02
Less: Closing stock 9,817.81 9,954.18
Cost of material consumed 33,475.49 14,175.62

“Raw Materials comprise RTPCR, Tube,¥TM,Q.C Lab,VTM Chemicals,Microbiology chemicals,Uncut Sheets,Plastic Cassets. Individual items in value do not amount for more than 10% of total

value

Purchases of Stock-in-trade

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Stock-in-trade® 141,286.04 129,944.79
141,&.04 1_2=9,‘)44,?9

*Stock-in-trade include Regents and instruments namely Auto Hematology analyser, Diluents,

mare than 10% of total value

Bio-Chemistry Anatyser and Oxygen Concentrators. Individual ftems in value do not amount for

Changes in i tes of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Closing stock
Finished goods 12,603.80 5,129.01
Work-in-progress 10,662.38 640.21
Stock-in-Trade 48,297.95 62,890.46
Total 71,564.13 68,659.68
Opening stock
Finished goods 5,129.01 3,727.01
Work-in-progress 640.21 29.68
Stock-in-Trade 62,890.46 27,271.96
Total 68,659.68 31,028.65
Net decrease/(increase) in inventories (2,904.45) H? 531.03)

el XTI d e =B Rl
,._'..l.....—-l-I,.‘ f
! =1

e
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Employee benefit exp

Salaries and wages

Contribution to Provident and Other fund (refer note 35)
Gratuity Expense (Note 15)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance Cost

Interest on:
-Cash credit from banks
-Term loan from banks
-Working capital loan
-Deferred payment tiablity
-Payables to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 13}
-Delayed payment of statutory dues

Other Borrowing Costs:
-Loan processing charges

Depreciation expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 12)

Other expenses

Business promation
Commission
Discount Expense
Director sitting fees
Freight & Cartage outward (Met of recovery)
Insurance
Legal and professional expenses (Refer note 31)"
Office expense
Power & fual
Printing and stationary expenses
Rates & taxes
Rent (Refer Note 34)
Repairs

-To Machinery

-To others
Testing & validation expenses
Travelling expenses
Provision for Doubtful debts
Bank Charges
Miscellaneous expenses

Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 202%
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
{All amounts in Rs. Thousands, uniess otherwise stated)

March 31, 2025

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
19,241.98 B,B66.62
509,35 361.23
548.31 27.00
120.73 160.88
20,520.38 9,415.73
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2024

3,429.17 3,183.17
£80.85 654,33
598.93 .
457.84 -
132.05 88.61
1.9 2.04
800.93 185.18
6,101.68 4,113,313
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
7,494.78 4,447.98
7,494.78 4,447.98

For the Year Ended

For the Year Ended

# includes professional fees paid to a director (relative of a director till August 23, 2024) Rs 706.45 Thousands (Previous year: Rs 1,800.00 Thousands)

Payments to auditors (excluding GST)

As Auditor:

- For Statutory audit

» For Special Purpose Audit
Out -of- pocket expenses

Prior Period items

Prior perfod expenses -
Director remuneration for the period Jan-Mar 2024

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
3,468.19 1,919.33
20.89 389.47
1,629.21 1,342.10
130.00 .
1,969.14 1,070.94
145.91 51.66
2,637.67 3,3%7.11
259.1 306.65
1,169.88 778.44
126.68 715
348.81 106.28
2,910.72 2,474.4%
262.51 53.48
B5.87 69.55
: 38.01
2,108.36 1,510.m
1,365.29 -
79.16 256.04
81.97 321.52
19,999.97 14,402.24
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

300.00 300.00
250.00 :
25.17 14.85
875.17 314.85
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

750.00

750.00
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33 Details of dues to micra and small enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006-

34

i5

Particular As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
The principal and the i due tt T ining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year included
in:
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 1,046.13 2,164,10
« Interest due on abave - 88.61
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond appainted day. 88.61 .
The of i due and payabl fnr!heperlodcfaehyinmkhgpawmnltwhichhawbmpaidbmbeywdme
appeintment day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006. 132.05 .
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 141.40 97.96
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
abave are actually paid to small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible under section 21 of the MSMED Act, 2008, 9.35 9,35
Hate: The information furnished above has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified based on inf i ilable with the Management,
Leases:
The Company has lease arrang, for the office and factory premises, The leases are both cancellable and non-cancellable and ranges for the period from 3 to 5 years.
Particular As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Lease pay recognised in the st of Profit and Loss in respect of all leases 2,910.72 1,991.45
With respect to non-cancellable lease, the future minimum lease payments are as fellows:
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Naot later than one year 340.95
Later than one year and not later than five years 3
Later than five years 3
a) Defined Contribution Plan
The Company makes contributions, d as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying employ is Provident and employee | e Funds, which
are defined contribution plans. The contributions are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as they accrue. The Company has no cbligation other than to make the specified
contributions. The recognised as an exp towards contribution to Providert fund for the year aggregated to Rs. 509,36 thousands (Previous year: Rs. 361.13 thousands)
b) Defined Benefit Plan
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every playee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratulty on separation or retirement at 15 days salary (last drawn
s.ulary}raren:hcornpletedynrufsavi:eurpant}nmflqmnfsix hs. The following tables s ise the comp of net benefit exg gnized in the S of
Profit and Loss and the amounts recognized in the balance sheet for gratuity plan.
Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/liability on Gratuity plan
i) Exp Rec ised in the 5 of Profit and Loss for the Year
Particulars For the Year ended March
31, 2025
Current service cost 228.97
Past service cost 306.34
Interest cost 13,00
Net actuarial (gain) /loss recognized in the year &
Exg recognised in the st of profit and loss 548.31
i) Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation For the Year ended March
31, 2025

Denefined Benefit obligation 719.06
Fair value of plan assets -
Net (assets)/liablity recognised in balance sheet 729.06

+======-This space has been intentionally left blank -----
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(ALl amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

iii) Change in the present value of the defined benefit nbl[-g,am\n For the Year ended March
31, 2025
Opening defined benefit obligation 1B0.75
Interest cost 13.00
Current service cost 218.97
Past service cost 306.34
Benefits paid =
Actuarial (gains)/loss on obligation
Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets -
Clesing defined benefit obligation 729.06
iv) The principle assumptions used in determinating gratuity
a) Economic assumptios For the Year ended March
31, 2025
i) Discount rate 6.54%
ii) Future salary increase B.00%
iii) Expected Rate of return on plan assets N A
b) Demeographic assumptions For the Year ended March
31, 2025
i) Retirement age 60 years
ii) withdrawal/Attrition Rate
Year 1 40%
Year 1 0%
Year 3 20%
Year 4 10%
Year 5+ 10%
iii) Mortality table IALM 2012-14
Disclosed as :
-Long Term Provisions (Note-7) 524,24
-5hort Term Provisions (Note-11) 204.82

This is being first year of applicability of disclosure of AS 15 “Employee Benefits” in its entirity due to classification of the Company as non SMC, hence previous year disclosires are not
applicable.

Related party disclosures (as per nting Standard-18

Names of related parties and nature of relationship:
Where control exist:

Subsidiary F DR Meditech Surgical and Diagnestics (India) Private Limited (w.e.f. August 08, 2023)

Other related parties where transactions have taken place during the year:

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) : Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary, Managing Director
: Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary, Whole Time Director
- Mr. Janardan Pal ,Non Executive Director (Executive Director tiil August 23, 2024)
Mrs. Deepa Choudhary, Director (w.e  August 23, 2024)
Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal, Independent Director {August 23, 2024 to November 23, 2024)
: Mr, Pankaj Sharma, Independent Director (w.e.f August 23, 2024)
: Mr. Om Prakash Pal, Additional Director

Relative of KMP's : Mr. Aditya Pal
1 Mrs Geeta Chaudhary
Trasanctions with related parties during the year: For the Year ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(a) Issue of shares

Mr Dharam Deo Chaudhary 3,318.16 E

Mr Ram Nagina Chaudhary 1,265.69 -

4 58385 z

(b) Share premium received

Mr Dharam Dec Chaudhary 38,158.84 -

Mr Ram Nagina Chaudhary 14,555.44 -
52,714.28 -

(€) Purchase of investment in equity

Mr Dharam Deo Choudhary - 41,477.03

Mr Ram Nagina Choudhary - 15,821.20

= 57,298.23
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(d) Loan taken from/(repayment to) directors
Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary

Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary

Mr. Janardan Pal

(e) Legal and professicral fees
Mrs. Deepa Choudhary

(f) Sale of products

DR Meditech Surgical and Diagnastics (India) Private Limited
(g) Purchase of R ch & Develop C bl

DR Meditech Surgical and Diagnostics {India) Private Limited

(h) Purchases of Stock-in-trade
DR Meditech Surgical and Diagnostics (India) Private Limited

(i) Purchases of Raw material
DR Meditech Surgical and Diagnostics (India) Private Limited

(j) Assets Purchased
DR Meditech Surgical and Diagnostics (india) Private Limited

(k) Remuneration

Mr Dharma Deo Chaudhary
Mr. Ram Nagina Chaudhary
Mr. Janardan Pal

Mrs Deepa Chaudhary

Mr. aditya Pal

(1) Director sitting fees
Mr. Janardhan Pal

Mr. Om Prakash Pal

Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal
Mr. Pankaj Sharma

Balance outstanding at the years end:

Advances from customer
DR Meditech Surgical and Diagnastics (India) Private Limited

Amount payable towards purchase consideration
Mr Dharam Deo Choudhary
Mr Ram Nagina Choudhary

Remuneration payable
Mr Dharam Deo Chaudhary
Mrs Deepa Chaudhary
Mr Janardhan Pal
Mr; Ram Nagina Chaudhary
Mr. Aditya Pal

Director sitting fees Payable
Mr. Janardhan Pal

Mr. Om Prakash Pal

Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal

Mr. Pankaj Sharma

Loan Payable

Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary
Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary
Mr. Janardan Pal

Notes :

The Inf has been d

Key management personnels i e Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary, Mr Janardhan Pal, Mr. Ram Na
personal guarantees against Cash Credit facilities availed from bank. Refer Note B.

Avience Blomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Blomedicals Private Limited)

CIN- U74999DL2015PLC359158
{All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)
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3,697.40 22,726.00
{17,202.20) 3,281.00
1,839.00
(13,504.80) 27,846.00
706,45 1,800.00
56,703.81 58,796.02
- 10.10
11,887.35 9,579.07
564.75 1,026.42
1,316.01
3,750.00 -
729.03 .
235.48 400.00
1,458.07 =
112.16
6,284.74 600.00
45.00 -
30.00
10.00
45.00
130.00
As at As at
___March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
16,008.35 8,434.77
& 41,477.03
- 15,821.20
= 57,298.23
2,670.24 -
1,024.95 .
194.08 -
197.73 .
30.50 -
4,117.50 -
40.50 -
27.00 -
9.00 -
40,50 -
117.00 -
16,423.43 22,726.00
1,500.00 3,281.00
1,839.00 1,835.00
30,162.43 27,846.00

d to the extent such parties have been identified by the management on the basis of information available with them.

gina Choudhary and Mrs Deepa Choudhary and their relative Mrs Geeta Choudhary have given
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37 Earning per share- Basic and Diluted

Units As at As at
ParHodi March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit attributable to the equity sharehalders (4) Amount Rs. Thousands 50,022.52 20,011.99
Total shares outstanding as at the end of the year No's 4,031,256 3,284,500
Weightad average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) Hos 3,793,890 3,284,500
Basic and Diluted earning per share (A/B) (Rs.) Rs. 13.19 6.09
Hominal value per equity shares Rs. 10.00 10.00

Note: The Company does not have any potential dilutive equity shares at the year end.

38 Unhedged foreign currency exposures

Foreign currency exp e of the company that is not hedg 'bydeﬁvaliveinmnmuu’c&herw!nasmhﬁardl31,20255reasunder

[Farticutars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Amount ot Amount i
(in Fareign Rs."000 (in Foreign Currency) Rs.'000
Currency) ('000) ) ('000) t
Trade Receivable
United States Dollars 358.75 30,798.38 15.00 1,247.90
39  a) Value of imports on CIF Basis As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw Material 5,404.95 7,951.99
b) Value of export on FOB Basis
Manufacturing Goods 52,429.76 5,918.48

--=-- The space has been Intentionally left blank -----
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Contingent liabilities and commitments

Avience Biomedicals Limited

(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158

in Rs. Th ds, uniess otherwise stated)

(all

Estimated value of contracts on capital account (net of capital advances), remaining to be executed and not provided for

There are no contingent liabilities as on March 31, 2025 (previous year- Nil}.

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2025

10,072.05 1.867.60

Ratios
5. No. Ratio Calculation For the year ended March 31, 2025 For the year;r:‘i‘ed MAFEN31 Variance Reason for Yariance more than 25%

1 Current Ratio (Current Assets/Current Liabilities 1.39 0.67] 108%| In the current year, the Company has paid share purchase
cansideration which led to decrease in current liablity, hence
resulting in positive variances in current ratio.

2 Debt Equity Ratio Total Debt/Shareholders Equity 0.67 1.28 -47%| During the current year, the Company issued equity shares of
Rs. 74,67,560 leading in variance on Debt equity ratio.

3 Debt Service Coverage  [Earnings for debt service'/ Debt 4.95 7.16) -31%| During the current year Company has fully paid the deferred

Ratio T | payment liablity which leading to negative impact in ratio.
E] [Retumn on Equity Met Income (After Tax)/Average 136.75%] 39.40%] 247% Increase in net profit margin due to increase in export sale on
Shareholders Equity better margins and increase in manufacturing sale having
better gross margin.
5 Inventory turnover ratio |Net Sales/ Average Inventory 3.61 2.85 27%} As the C ny has significant growth of 78% in the tumover
ompa
in the year ended March 31, 2025 which leading to improvent
in inventory turnover ratio.

3 Trade Receivables Net credit sales/ Average accounts 5.1 7.69 -34%| Negative variance due to better collection track and better

turnover ratio receivable management of resources.

7 Trade payables turnover |Total purchase/ Average account 417 5.94 -30%| The percentage increase in average account payable is more|

2 P
ratio payable than the percentage increase in the total purchase as the
company aimed at utilising its full credit period for the better|
cash flow management leading to the increment in the
|average account payable.
8 Net capital turnover Net sales/ Average working capital 107.53 {6.69) 1707%|In the previous year, Company has negative working capital
ratio due to liability towards investment. The same has been settled
in the current year leading to a change in the ratio.

2 Net profit ratic Het profit/sales 17.32% 12.28% 41%|Increase in net profit margin due to increase in export sale on
better margins and increase in manufacturing sale having
better gross margin.

10 Return on Capital EEIT/Capital Employed 30.80% 22.41% 374%|Increase in net profit margin due to increase in export sale on

ployed better margins and increase fn manufacturing sale having
better gross margin.
: oMedin
1. Eamings for debt service = Net Profit beforg.taxes+ Non-cash operating expenses+ Interest @\ 9/
2, Interest« Principal Payments AR p N o ‘p
—Ly G ‘:
=
© 3
AL .'—”'1 '7 6“
wisVY AL A'_
Q
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42 During the year and in the previous year, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment,

43 During the year and in the previous year, the Company has not granted any loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties as defined under the act.

44 During the year and in the previous year, no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the for holding any b i property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1983 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder,

45  Quarterly retumns or statements of current assets filed by the Company in respect of borrowings from banks are in agreement with the books of account.
46 During the year and in the previous year, the Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender,

47  The management confirms that the company had no transaction with any struck off companies during the year (previous year: Nilj.

48 The Company has no pending charges or satisfaction which are required to be registered with ROC (previous year: Nil).

49 The Company has not made any investment in Shares / Debenture or other securities through not more than two layers of Investment Company as defined under section 186 of the Companies Act 2013,

50  Duwring the year, the Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 (previous year: Nil).
51 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person{s) or entityiies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall :

(i} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever b;r or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries;

52 The Company has not received any funds from any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recarded in writing or atherwise) that the Campany shall «

{I) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

53 There are no transaction not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1951,
54  The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or any virtual currency during the year (previous year: Nil).
55  Other additional information as required to be disclosed under paragraph 5(ii) to 5{ix) of Part || of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 are either "Nil” or "Not applicable” to the Company.

56  Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified where necessary to conform to the current year's classification.

As per our report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Avience Biomedicals Limited

ICAl Firm Registration Mo.: 103523W/W100048 (Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Avience Biomedicals Limited (Formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited) (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding
Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”)
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Board’s Report including Management
Discussion & Analysis, but does not include the standalone financial statements, consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Holding Company’s Board Report including Management
Discussion & Analysis is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants Regn. No. AAC- 3768, a limited liability partnership registered in India (converted on 17th June, 2014
trom firm Haribhakti & Co. FRN: 103523W)

3rd Floor, 52-B Okhla Industrial Area, Phase |ll, New Delhi - 110 020, India. Tel:+91 11 4711 9999 Fax:+91 11 4711 3938

Registered office: 705, Leela Business Park, Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 059, India,

Other offices: Ahmedabad, Bengaluru, Chennai, Hyderabad, Kolkata, Mumbai, Pune.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information when it becomes available to us and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of other auditor, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the
Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Continuation Sheet
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« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary company which is
company incorporated in India, has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Continuation Sheet
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary company, whose financial statements reflects
total assets of Rs. 2,02,699.06 thousands and net assets of Rs. 80,033.58 thousands as at March 31, 2025,
total revenues of Rs. 2,34,454.01 thousands and net cash inflow amounting to Rs. 278.73 thousands for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditor whose reports have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary, and our report in terms of section 143(3) of the Act,
in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary company is based solely on the reports of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARQ”) issued by the Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of
the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to
us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Holding Company and taking into consideration
the report of other auditor on separate financial statements of subsidiary included in the consolidated
financial statements to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report in “Annexure 1" the details
of the gualifications or adverse remarks reported in the aforesaid CARO reports.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditor on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiary as
noted in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those
books and the reports of the other auditor;

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books of account
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
March 31, 2025 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports
of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company, none of the directors of the Group companies, is
disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the
Act;

Continuation Sheet




HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure 2";

g. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us by the
Holding Company and the report of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary company, incorporated in
India, the remuneration paid/ provided to their directors during the year by the Holding Company and
subsidiary company incorporated in India is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group - Refer Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements;

(i) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the guestion of
any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(ili) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India.

(iv) (a) Based on our audit report on separate financial statements of the Holding Company and
consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements of its subsidiary company,
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, the management
of the Holding Company and the respective management of the aforesaid subsidiary, have represented
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group to
or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) Based on our audit report on separate financial statements of the Holding Company and
consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements of its subsidiary company,
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, the management
of the Holding Company and the respective management of the aforesaid subsidiary, have represented
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Group from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, and consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements of
the subsidiary company, incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(v) The Holding Company and its subsidiary company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the
year.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors
of the subsidiary which is the Company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been
audited under the Act, the holding company and its subsidiary have used an accounting software for
maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective
auditor of the above referred subsidiary did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being

tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the group as per the statutory requirements
for record retention.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

e NN

Kunj B. Agrawal

Partner

Membership No.: 095829
UDIN: 25095829BMOJND3705

Place: New Delhi
Date: awe IS 3s™E
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Avience Biomedicals Limited (Formerly

known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2025]

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the reports issued under the Order
by us for the Holding Company and its subsidiary company included in the consolidated financial statements
of the Company, to which reporting under the Order is applicable, the details of qualifications or adverse
remarks are as below:

Limited

Holding Clause number of
Sr. Name CIN Company the CARO report
No. /Subsidiary which is qualified
/Associate or adverse
1 DR Meditech Surgical & U51909DL2010PTC1 | Subsidiary vii(a) & vii(b)
Diagnostics (India) Private 99478 Company

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

Kunj B. Agrawal

Partner

Membership No. : 095829

UDIN: 25095829BMQOJND3705

Place: New Delhi

Date: e agr Seac
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in our
Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Avience Biomedicals Limited (Formerly
known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited) on the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2025.]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited) (“Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary company which is company incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company which is company
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of Holding Company and its subsidiary company which is company incorporated in India, based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance MNote require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor, in
terms of their report referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of Holding Company and its subsidiary company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1)
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on
consideration of reporting of other auditor as mentioned in Other Matters paragraph below, the Holding
Company and its subsidiary company which is company incorporated in India, have, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the respective companies considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to the subsidiary
company which is company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of such
company incorporated in India.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

Kunj B. Agrawal :
Partner

Membership No.: 095829 -
UDIN: 25095829BMOJND3705

Place: New Delhi

Date: Nawe QAT Aasac
P
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Blomedicals Private Limted)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

CIN- UT4999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Particulars Notes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital k] 40,312,586 32,845.00
Reserves and surplus 4 186,284.69 29,417.34
226,597.25 62,262.34
Minority Interest 5 0.24 0.18
Non-current liabilities
Long-term Borrowings 6 98,495.28 72,843.02
Deferred Tax liabilities (net} Ta 1,468.28 976.71
Long term provisions 8 2,404.98 2,180.45
102,368.54 76,000.18
Current labilities
Short term borrowings L 123,086.78 78,463.68
Trade payables 10
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 10,185.95 12,976.57
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 62,496.68 42,512.94
enterprises
Other current liabilities 1 14,261.82 66,123.1%
Short term provisions 12 25,885.59 8,019.47
235,916.82 208,115.85
TOTAL 564,882 85 346,378,55
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
-Property, plant and equipment 13 125,591.19 101,048.68
-Capital Work in Progress 14 46,191.11 180.00
Goodwill on Consolidation 15 1,445.86 1,445.86
Non Current Investments 16 274.63 74.63
Deferred Tax Assets (net) b 74017 1,080.97
Long-term loans and advances 17 11,101.77 5,798.42
Other Non-current assets 18 3,814.37 6,045.69
193.159.10 115,974.25
Current assets
Inventories 19 130,712.45 123,954.04
Trade receivables 20 172,105.57 80,%07.51
Cash and bank balances il 49,365.17 1,568.07
Short-term loans and advances 22 18,643.06 21,3N.93
Other current assets . 3 B97.50 602.75
371,723.75 230,404.30
TOTAL 5641582.85 346,378, 22
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the C lidated financial
As per our report of even date.
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Avience Biomedicals Limited
ICAl Firm Registration No.:103523W/W100048 (Fermerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Privyte Limited)
’/
) —”1 -
EHN . - )
Kunj B. Agrawal _:f /, ‘?l.l Dharam Deo Choudhary  Ram Magina Ch rabh Verma Man umar
Partner (% | MW DL "2 || piréetor Director Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: 095829 | =2\ " =T LD T DIN: 02804625 DIN: 02804667 PAN: ANAPVE729) Membership No: FE7837
Place: New Delhi \ Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: Delhi

Date: Q?Hz

02§

Date: Q106 [Qa\”

Date: oq{ol(

Place: New Pelh
Date: .2 C‘GLCJ-S‘



Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limted)

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC3I59158

(Al amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
N Wohes March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
INCOME
Revenue from eperations 24 452,359.38 239,640.12
Other Income 25 6,725.05 4,086.41
Total Income 455,084.43 243,726.53
EXPENSES
Cost of materfals consumed 26 33,001.72 13,514.44
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 7 244,618.79 190,665.33
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade 18 (7.005.76) (48,302.29)
Employee benefits expense 29 32,105.77 19,442.24
Finance cost 30 14,159.59 9,084.56
Depreciation expense n 8,817.53 6,231.57
Other expenses 32 34,929.02 22,818.34
Total expenses 160,646.66 213,456.20
Profit before prior period items & tax 98,437.77 30,270.33
Prior period Items 322 750.00
Profit before tax 97,687.77 30,270.33
Tax expense
- Current tax 25,799.99 B,356.42
- Deferred tax £32.37 199.16
-Earlier year tax adjustment 64.94 29.53
26,697.30 8,685,111
Profit for the year before minority interest 70,990.47 21,585.22
Share of profit of Minority 0.06 0.01
Profit for the year after minority interest 70,990.41 21,585.21
Earnings per equity share
Nominal Value of Rs.10 each (Previous year Rs.10 each)
- Basic and Diluted (Rs.) 7 18.71 6.57
Summary of significant acc ing policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Avience Biomedicals Limited
ICAl Firm Registration No.:103523W/W100048 (Farmer| s Avience Biomed
:.' A\
~
Kunj B. Agrawal DHaram Deo Choudhary Ram Nagina Ch: Saurabh Verma Manaj K
Partner \ Dir Director hief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: 095829 ! wild | DIN: 02804625 DIN: 02804667 PAN: ANAPVET29J Membership No: F&7837
Place: New Delhi : ), Place: N thi Place: Hew i Place: Hew Delhi Place: New ”
DutleFe 5 Date: IS o6 Rea§ Date: Qg‘m kc.lg- Date: o(Maly
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limted)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN- U749990L2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 97,687.77 30,270.33
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense B8,817.53 6,233.57
Gain/loss on Sale of Property, plant & equipment 138.58 (65.01)
Interest expense 13,129.80 9,084.56
Interest Income (379.97) (328.25)
Provision for gratuity 136.22 103,23
Provision for compensated absences (161.62) 37.58
Provision for doubtful debt 1,365.29 -
Liabilities no longer required written back (256.98) (172.39)
Operating profit before working capital changes 120,576.62 45,163.63
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (6,758.41) (53,828.25)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (92,563.35) 19,538.57
(Increase)/Decrease in short term loans and advances 2,718.87 (5,696.25)
(Increase)/Decrease in Long term loans and advances (5,303.35) (1,115.65)
(Increase)/Decrease in Other non-current assets (133.50) 200.00
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 17.193.12 24,293.30
Increase/ (Decrease) in current liabilities 6,070.31 {16,582.58)
Cash generated from/(use in) operations 41,810.32 11,972.77
Income (taxes paid)/ refund, net (7,868.89) (1,800.99)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 33,941.43 10,171.78
. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipments (93,083.46) (38,810.60)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 399.48 460.00
Investment in gold - (88.94)
Proceeds from/ (investment) in Fixed deposits having maturity more than 3 months (2,891.12) (1,954.34)
Interest received 85.22 116.99
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (95,489.88) (40,276.89)
. Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from short term borrowings 44,623.10 1,539.49
Proceeds from long term borrowings 34,926.49 35,959.69
Interest expense (13,506.24) (8,149.67)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares 36,046.27 .
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 102,089.62 29,349.51
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 40,541.17 (755.60)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 1,457.27 911.41
Add: cash acquired on acquisition - 1,301.46
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 41,998.43 1,457.27
Notes:
1.Components of cash and cash equivalents (Note 21)
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance with banks in current account 40,644.67 917.63
Cash on hand 1,353.76 539,64
41,998.43 1,457.27

2. The above Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Methed' set out in Accounting Standard - 3 * Cash Flow Statement”

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Avience Biomedicals Limited

ICAl Firm Registration No.:103523W/W100048 {Former‘_l as Avience Biomedicals Prfvate Limited)
/
Kunj B Agrawa Dharam Deo Choudhary S§urabh Verma Manoj Kumar
Partner Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No: 095829 | 1=/ L) ) DIN: 02804625 DIN: 02804667 PAN: ANAPVBT29) Membership No: F8737
Place: New Delhi b Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
ot s Date: ogktuf Date: Q?’Oﬂ 03y Date: 2 eay” Date: nyoel.&'dr

Date : @mas
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limted)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

BACKGROUND

Avience Biomedicals Limited (Formerly known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limited) (the "Holding Company”’) and its subsidiary "DR
Meditech Surgical & Diagnostics(India) Private Limited" (collectively referred to as "The Group”) is a Delhi based group ventured into the
preducts and solutions in molecular segment of diagnostics and testing. The Holding company was incorporated on December 23, 2019
under the Companies Act, 2013 as a private limited company. The Group deals in various aspects of Molecular biotechnology, markers,
genomics and IVD industry. The Group aims at creating solutions that are on cutting edge with the latest advarcements in the globe,
having wide applications and that provide cost-effective solutions for the rural and the needy.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in the extra ordinary general meeting of the shareholder of the Holding company held on June
26, 2024, post which company has converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company, and consequently the name of
the Holding company has changed to 'Avience Biomedicals Limited' vide new certificate of incorporation obtained from the Registrar of
Companies approved on September 03, 2024.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis for preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

These Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Accounting Standards
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act’) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2021,
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India
(Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal operating cycle and other criteria set

out in the Schedule |l to the Act. The Group has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Principles of Consolidation

(i). The CFS of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standard on “Consolidated Financial Statements™ (AS-
21) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as amended from time to time.

(if). The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company are consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding
together the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating material intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions and resulting unrealized profits or losses on intra-group transactions.

(iii). The difference between the costs of investment in the subsidiaries and the Company’s share of net assets at the time of acquisition
of shares in the subsidiaries is recognised in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

(iv). As far as possible, the CFS are prepared using uniform significant accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances.

(v). The Financial Statements of the Company and its Subsidiary used in Consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as

followed by the Company, i.e., March 31, 2025 and in the same format as that adopted by the holding company for its separate
financial statements.

(vi) The details of the Company considered in the consolidated financial statement is listed below:

Name of the company % of Ownership Date of becoming Country of Incorporation
Subsidiary

DR Meditech Surgical & Diagnostics (India) Pvt

] -Aug-202 i
Ltd 99.99% 08-Aug-2023 India

Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP)
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities at the reported date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although, these
estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ. Any revision in
accounting estimate is recognized prospectively in the period in which actual results are known.
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limted)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue can be reliably
measured.

Revenue from sales of products is recognized when significant risks and rewards of cwnership of goods are transferred to the customer
as per the terms of the contract and are recognised, net of trade discounts, rebates, excise duties and taxes on sale, as applicable.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE'or 'Assets') are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes (wherever applicable), less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of asset is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the existing
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing assets, including day to day repair and

maintenance and cost of replacing parts are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year during which such expenses are
incurred.

Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are stated at lower of book value and net realizable value as estimated by the
Company and are shown separately in the financial statements under other current assets. Loss determined, if any, is recognized

immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, whereas gain or loss an sale of such assets is recognized only upon completion of sale
thereof.

Depreciation

The Holding Company charges depreciation on PPE on pro-rata basis on straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as specified under schedule Il to the Act except certain items of plant and equipment and electrical fittings which have been
depreciated over the period of 10 years and 5 years respectively based on technical evaluation carried out by the management. In

respect of these items, the useful life determined on the basis of management estimation is lower than the useful life prescribed in Part
‘C’ of Schedule Il of the Act, as detailed below:

Useful life (In years) on the Useful life (In years) as per
Particulars basis of Management Estimate Schedule Il
Plant and Equipment 10 15
Electrical fittings ) 5 10

The cost of leasehold land is amortised on straight line method over the lease period. Depreciation on addition to property, plant and
equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard of property,
plant and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment,as the case may be.

Residual value @ 5% has been considered the purpose of calculating depreciation on property, plant and equipment.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset’s net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Leases (as a Lessee)
Operating lease:
Lease arrangements, where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor, are recognized

as an operating lease. Lease payments under operating lease are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Avience Biomedicals Limited
(Formerly Known as Avience Biomedicals Private Limted)
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2025
CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Employee Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and
recognized in the year in which employee renders the related service.

Defined Contribution Plan
Employee State Insurance Corporation

In accordance with the provisions of the Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, eligible employees of the company are entitled to receive
benefits to ESI, a defined contribution plan in which both the company and the employee contribute monthly at a determined rate. The
Company's contribution to ESI is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred, The company has no further
obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contribution.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity

A defined benfits plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Benefits under Gratuity is defined
benefit plan. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company’s abligation in respect of gratuity is calculated on
actual basis equivalent to 15 days last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service as on Balance sheet date.,

Compensated Absences

Benefits under the Company's leave encashment constitute other long-term employee benefits, the liability of which is determined on
the basis of last drawn salary for unused, unexpired accumulated leaves as on Balance sheet date.

Inventory

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost
of finished goods and work-in-progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxes on income
Tax expense for the year comprises current tax and deferred tax.

i) Current tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the prevailing Income Tax
laws.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the year.
The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is
reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future, However, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of
losses, deferred tax assets are recognized only if there is a virtual certainty supperted by convincing evidence of realization of such
assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are written-down or written-up to reflect the amount that is
reasonably / virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realized.

Pravisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provision

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the

obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of ane or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company or a

present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.
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Contingent Assets

The Company does not recognize assets which are of contingent nature until there is virtual certainty of realisability of such assets.
However, subsequently, if it becomes virtual certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, asset and related income fis
recognized in the Consolidated financial statements of period in which the change occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, balances with bank and demand deposits with original maturity upto 3 months,

Earnings per share- Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the
year are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, share split or consolidation of shares.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign Currency transactions are recorded, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting
currency and the foreign currency, at the date of transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are
translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of Balance Sheet. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
carried at the values that were determined on the date of transaction.

Exchange differences either on settlement or on translation of transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Share capital As at As at
March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Humber of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 7,000,000 70,000.00 5,000,000 50,000.00
Issued, subseribed B paid up equity share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 4,031,256 40,312.56 3,284 500 32,845.00
4,031,256 40,312.56 3,284,500 32 845.00
Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at Az at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2024
Equity Shares HNumber of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
AL the beginning of the year 3,284 500 32,845.00 3,284,500 32,845.00
Shares lssued during the year ?46,?!2_ 7,467.56 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,031,256 40,312.56 !.m,snr: 32,845.00

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Holding Company has only one class of shares f.e. Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share,

Yoting
Each holder of equity shares s entitled to one vote per share held.

The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case where interim dividend is
distributed,

Liquidatian
In the event of liguidatian, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to recelve all of the remaining assets of the Holding Company, after distribution of all preferential

amounts, If any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.
The Group does not have any holding company,

Details of sharehciders halding more than 5% shares in the halding company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of the shareholders HNumber of shares % of helding Mumber of shares % of halding
Mrs. Deepa Choudhary 438,400 10.88% 438,400 13.35%
Mr. Dharam Dec Choudhary 2,038,756 50.57% 1,707,940 52.00%
M, Janardan Pal 420,359 10.43% 421,359 12.83%
Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary 542,370 20.50% ?1&.&1 21.82%
1,739,885 92.78% 3,284 500 100.00%

Details of shareholding of Promoters

Shares held ters at the ended March 31, 2025
IP—I'LM*‘_mmn",i.m, Number of Shares | % of Total Equity share | % change during the
_year
3 438,400 10.88% 0.00)
2,038,756 50.57% 19.37%
420,359 10.43% 10.24%
842,370 0.5 17.52%
Shares held omaoters at the ended March 31, 2024
Prismatir Narma Number of Shares | % of Total Equity share| % change during the
Jyear
Choudhary 438,400 13.35% 0.
1,707,540 52.00%) .00%)
411,355 12.83% LO0%)
716,801 21.82%]

Aggregate number of equity shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares during the period of five years immediately preceeding the Balance Sheet date;

During the financial year 2022-23, the Holding Company issued 7,50,000 equity shares as fully paid-up bonus shares (having a face value of Rs. 10 each| out of reserves and
surplus.

Aggregate number of equity shares alloted as fully paid up with being d in cash during the pericd of five years Immediately preceeding the Balance
Sheet date:

During the year, the Holding Company has alloted 4,58,385 number of equity shares @ Rs 125 per share {including premium of Rs 115 per share] to the existing shareholders of
DR Meditech Surgical and Diagnostics (India) Private Limited on account of acquiring their shareholding.

Mo class of shares have been bought back since incention of the Company.

There were no securities into equity/pref, & shares issued at the year end [Previous year:Nil).

Calls unpaid Including aggregrate value of calls unpaid by Directors and Officers: Nil (Previous year:Nil).

Forfeited shares: Nil [Previous year:Nil).

Reserves and surplus As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year 19,417.34 7,831.12
Add: Profit as per Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss _70,950.41 21,585.22
Balance as at the end of the year (A} 100,407.75 19i41?.34
Securities Premium
Balance as at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Received during the year 85,876.94 -
Balance as at the end of the year s {B) 85,876.94

14) +{B] 186,184.69 19,417.34
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5 Minority Interest As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 018 -
Add: Share of mincrity interest . 0.17
Add: Share of profit for the year 0.06 0.01
Balance as at the end of the year 0.24 0.18
& Long Term Borrowings As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
Term Loans
- from bank [Refer Note (i){A), (ii)(A) and Glitt)a] 46,391.55 T2,282.18
- from financial Institution [refer {i)(B) and (iT)(B1] 60,200.00 -
106,593.55 72,282.16
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings {8,098.27) 16,652.43)
Deferred payment liability (refer note 13(a))
- Pending instaliments of leasehold land %,274.23
Less: Current maturities of deferred payment lability 2,060.94)
98, 495.28 72,843.02
Notes: . =t et
i} Terms of secured barrowings:
A} Term Loan from Bank :
a) The Holding Company has an outstanding working capital demand loan of Rs 963.54 thousands as on March 31, 2025 obtai under G d Emergency C for a
sanctioned amount of Rs 1,700 Thousands on October 25, 2021 from Canara Bank, which was subsequently transferred to Bank of india in December, 2022, The loan s repayable through
38 Monthly Install starting from Ne 23, 2023. The loan carries interest {Repo Based Lending Rate (RBLR) « 0.65%) of 9.75% per annum (Previous year ; 9.50% per annum |

with monthly reset.

b) On September §, 2023, the Holding Company took a term loan of Rs &§,422.86 Thousands from Bank of India for acquistion of plant and machinery. The |san is repayable through &5

menthly installments starting from September 30, 2023. This loan carries interest (Repo Based Lending Rate (RBLR) » 0.70%per annum) of 9.80% per annum (Previous year : 9.95%) with
manthly reset.

) The Subsidiary Company took a term loan from ICICI Bank of Rs 18,336.43 thousands against security of Building on November 07, 2017, repayable in 175 equal monthly instaiments

of As. 185.98 th ds (including | term starting from January 5, 2018 and ending on July 5, 2032. The loan carries interest @ EBLR-1% f.e. 10.10% {Present EBLR is
$.10%){ (Previous year : 9.15%).

d} The Subsidiary Compary has taken a fareign currency working capital demand loan from State Bank of India of USD 4,81,730.38 review In every 6 months, payable on demand, The
loan carrying interest EBLR«1% f.e. 10.15% (Present EBLR is 9.15%).5uch loan has been paid during the year.

€] The Subsidiary Company took a term loan from ICICI of Rs. ?.4?9Mandsfmni(l(llanhmkhuhhnwwmmmwrh,muu\devcmrarvlndinmmcy&td!tm

(GECL-1) payable in 25 monthly instalments. The loan carrying interest EBLR+0. 10% i.e. 09.20% (Present EBLR is 9.10%) (Previous year : 9.15%). This credit tine faclity has been closed
during the year ended March 31, 2025

f) The Subsidiary Company took a term kaan from ICICI of Rs. 7,200 thousands from ICICI Bank which was taken over by 581 on Cctober 31, 2022 under Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line
(GECL-2) payable in 36 ¥ . The loan carrying interest EBLR+0,10% f.e. 09.20% (Present EBLR is 9.10%) (Previous year : 9.15%).

) The Subsidiary Company took a top-up tarm loan of Rs. 24,000 thousands from ICICI Bank on June 14, 2024, ble in 132 Monthly i of Rs. 2,93,728/- (Including
Interest). This loan carries interest at Repo Rate + 4.9% Le.11.15% {Freun_t Repo rate is 6.25%),

h) Vehicle loans:

The Subsidiary Company has taken a vehicle loan from ICIC) Bank of Rs.1,288. 14 thousands to purchase a new Mahendra XUV 300/WE on March 24, 2023, repayable through 80 Monthly
Instaliments of Rs. 26,844+ (Including Interest) starting from May 10, 2023. This loan carries a reducing interest rate of 9% p.a.

The Subsidiary Company has taken a vehide loan from |:|C|nanuorm1,mmmsmp\mnammmmmwa.m1, yable through &0 hly Inst of Rs.
30,2334+ (Inciuding Interest) starting from August 10, 2021. This loan carries a reducing interest rate of 7.80% P.2. The loan is repaid during the year.

The Subsidiary Company has taken a vehicle loan from HDFC Bank of Rs. 1,550 thousands to purchase a new Mabendra Thar on February 17, 2022, repayable through 36 Monthly
installments of Rs. 48,215/ (Including Interest) starting from March 7, 2022. This loan carries a reducing interest rate of 7.50% p.a. The loan is repaid during the year.

The Subsidiary Company has taken a vehicte loan from |CICI Bank of Rs. 3,000 thousands to purchase a new Toyta Fartuner on March 12, 2020, repayable through 60 Monthly
installments of Rs, 61,521/- (Including Interest) starting from April 5, 2020, This loan carries a reducing interest rate of 8.55% p.a. The loan is repaid during the year.

8) Term Loan from financial insititution: -
The Holding Company took a term loan from Small Industries Development Bank of India (SID81) for eonstruction of new production facility at Plot Mo 70, Sector 28, Yamuna Express

Way Industrial Development Area. The sanctioned limit of the loan is for Rs.1,20,000 Thousands, out of which 50,200 thousands availed during the year. The repayment of above laan
will start from Feburary 2026.

ii) Mature of Security
A) Term loan taken from bank:-

11} The Subsidiary Company had availed the Fund Based Limit from 5B1 is secured against hypothcation of stocks and receivables after providing for the existing limits and margins. The
GECL-2 is ranked pari pasu with above security.

(i) The Subsidiary Company took term loan from ICICI Bank which is secured against bullding bearing no. B, Block B, Pocket 3, Sector 17, Dwarka, New Dethi -110075.

B) Term loan taken from financial insitution:-

The Holding Company took & loan from SIDBI is secured against hypothecation of all the movables including plant & machinery, miscellaneous fixed assets, equipment, machinery

spares , tools B accessories and all other assets of the Company which have been acquired under the project and the land purchased by the Holding Company at YEIDA, Plot Mo, Sector-
28 Noida,

€} The vehicle loans are d by hyg of underlyi hicl

iii) Also, refer note 44, 45 and 47.
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Motes to C

7 Deferred tax Habilities
The tax effect of significant timing differance that reverse in one or more subsequent years gave rise (o the net deferred tax lability/ (asset) as at March 31, 2025, are a5 under:

Hoiding Company
March 31, 2025
As at Charge/(reversal) for As at
March 31, 2025 the year March 31, 2024

Deferred tax assets arising on account of:

# Howable on basis n.s7 14583 75.74

« Pravision for doubtful debts 367.20 367.20 -
Total deferred tax asset (A) S88.77 513.03 75.74
Deferred tax liabilities arising on account of;

- difference in wrilten down value of praperty, plant and equipment as per Tax and the books of account 2,057.05 1,004.80 1,052.45
Total deferred tax Habilities (B) 1,057.058 1,004.60 1,052.45
Net Deferred tax Liabilities (B-4) 1,468.28 491.57 976.71

March 31, 2024
Asat Charge/(reversal) for Asat
March 31, 2024 the year March 31, 2023
Deferred tax assets arising on account of;

- expenditure allowabie on payment basis 75,74 43.88 31.86
Total deferred tax asset (A) 75.74 43.88 31.86
Deferred tax Habilities arising on account of:

- difference in written down value of property, plant and equipment as per Tax and the books of account 1,052.45 478.47 573.98
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 1,052 .45 478.47 573.98
Net Deferred tax Liabilities (B-4) 976.71 434.59 54212
Subsidiary Company March 31, 1025

As at Charge/{reversal) for As at
March 31, 2025 the year March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets arising on account of:

- on account of gratuity and leave 503.78 1131.28) 635.04
- difference in written down value of property, plant and equipment as per Tax and the books of account 236.39 {209.54) 445.93
Total deferred tax asset T40.17 (340.80) 1,080.97

March 31, 2024
As at Charge/(reversal) for As at
March 31, 2024 the period August 08, 2023"

Deferred tax assets arising on account of:

- on account of gratuity and leave encashment 6315.04 635.04 -

- difference in written down value of property, plant and equipment as per Tax and the books of account 445.93 178.19 167.74
Total deferred tax asset 1,080.97 813.21 267.74
* refer note Z{a) of C d Fianncial §

Long Term Provisions As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for Employ
« Gratuity (Refer note no. 35(b)) 1,247.56 1,180.45
- Compensated absences 157.42 z

2,404.98 2,180.45

Short Term Borrowings As at Asat

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Secured
Current maturities of long term borrowings (Refer note 6) B,098.27 8,713.37
‘Working Capital Loan from Bank [refer note i and ii(a)} 1,962.87 .
Repayable on demand

« Cash credit from banks (Refer note if and i} 82,863.21 41,904.31
F 4, repayable on d .

- from related party (Refer note iv) 30,162.43 17,845.00

123,086.78 78,463.68

MNotes

) The Halding Company has availed & short term warking capital loan (standby letter of credit) from Bank of India in June, 2024 repayable in 11 equated hly installment of Rs 960.00

thousands. Presently, Rate of interest is 11.33% p.a .

1] Terms of secured cash credit from bank

Far Heolding Company - Cash Credit from bank is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 1 year Repo Based Lending Rate(RBLR)+0.70% i.e. 9.95% {current RBLR being 9.10%).

For Subsidiary Company - Cash Credit from State Bank of India is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 1 year EBLR+1% Le. 10.10% {current EBLR being 9.10%),
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i) Mature of Security
Il} Holding:

Al

Nature of

A. Primary Security
Mnﬂmnrm&mmuﬂowm

| Hypothecation of plant and machinery

Ist charge - hypothecatian

B. Collateral

|Equitable Martgage of residential property being FLAT No. B 411, 4th Floor, The Patel Cooperalive Group Housing Soclety Limited
knows as Umiya Sagan, Plot No 4, Dwarka, Delhi- 110075 in the name of M-, Ram Nagina Choudhary(Directar) and Mrs. Geeta
Choudhary (Retative of Director)

EQM (First Charge)

TDR of Rs 3,000 Thousands is 1n name of company or directors

b) Subsidiary:

Liened Marked

1) Equitabl T

ge of sroperty being FLAT No. G 213, i . Jangal Salig Padri Bazaar, near Fatima
Hospital, Gorakhpur, U.P- 273014 in the name of Dr. Meditech Surgicals and Diagnostics India Private Limited.

2) Equitable Mortage of residential property being A 75, Ground Floor, Pocket 12, Group 3, Jasola Vihar, New Delhi- 110025 in the
name of Mr.Kapil Deo Choudhary and Mrs.Sumitra Devi,

3) Equitable Mortage of residential property being FLAT No.48, Pocket B, Sector 12, Dwarka B118ka, New Dethi -110075 in the
name of W. Dharam Dec Choudhary and Mrs Deepa Choudhary.

EMT (First Charge)

The above loans are also secured by the personal g
1 Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary
2 M. Janardan Pal
3 Mr. Ram Nagina Chaudhary
4 Mrs. Deepa Choudhary
5 Mrs. Geeta Choudhary
& Mr. Kapil Deo Choudhary
7 Mrs. Sumitra Choudhary

of the following directors and their relatives:-

Iv) Terms of unsecured |oan from related party:-
The unsecured loan by the holding company from the directors Is repayable on demand and is interest free.

v} Also, refer note 44, 45 and 47.

10 Trade payables As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Nate No. 33) 10,185.95 12,976.57
(b) total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises BZ.495.68 47,512,594
72.&;.53 55!¢!9.§l
Trade Payables ageing Schedule
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars [0 ing for following periecs from due date of Total
Unbilled Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year
1) MSME 449.00 0,?;3.95 - = = 10,185.95
[Ifl Others 105.49 62,385.80 5.3% L 62,496.68
(ifi) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - =
(iv) Disputed Dues - Dthers = - - - - -
Total 554.49 72,122.75 5.39 = = 71,682.63
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars O ding for following periods from due date of pay Total
Unbilled Less than 1 1-1 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
year
(1) MSME 419.00 12,520.17 37.40 - = 12,976.57
[FI1 Others B870.61 41,612.71 26.67 2.95 = 42,512.94
ifi) Di Dues - MSME . - - - - -
iv) Di Dues - Others - - - - -
Total 1,189.61 54,132.88 54.07 1.95 - 55,489.51
11 Other current liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employees dues payable 2,870.33 2,281.35
Directors’ remuneration payable 4,087.01 .
Directors’ sitting fees payabls . 117.00 -
Interest accrued but not due on barrowings 511.55 1,002.85
Advance from customers 3,078.34 3,424.25
Payable towards purchase of investment in subsidiary - 57,298.23
Statutory dues payable 1,8%0.03 266.80
Interest payables to Micro and Small Enterprises (refer note 33) 207.56 H4.m
Advance against sale of Property 1,500.00 1,500.00
14,261.82 66,123.19
12 Short Term Provisions As at As at
__March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance tax of Rs. 16.4% Thousands) (Previous year : Rs 2,735.66 Thousands) 25,472.56 7,476.52
Provision for Employee Benefi
- Gratuity (Refer Note 35(b)) 349.87 180.75
- Compensated Absances 63.16 382.20
25,885.55 503947
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for the year ended March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025
Particulars Gross block Accumulated depreclation Met block
Opening Balance Deletion Ciosing Balance as at| Opening Balance | Depreciation for the, Deletion Clasing Balance as at As at
as at April 1, 2024 March 31, 2025 | as at April 1, 2024 year March 31, 2025 March 11, 2025
Right to use - Leasehold Land (refer note a) 17,048,599 17,4899 46.15 179596 6.1 16,822.68
Land & Buildings 11,939.60 4,751.19 - 18,650.79 - 6165 . 621.65 18, 628.14
Plant and Equipment 65, 54945 32,551.49 353.94 w1400 11,166.38 7,400.98 42.325 18,525.11 Lo ¥R )
Computer 1,682.07 . 85172 BIA.34 1, 310,44 166.82 8107 563.20 173,14
Furmiture & Fixtures 1,206, 44 118.50 4.63 1,130.71 388,36 106,07 89.%0 404,53 B826.18
Office Equipment 215797 142,03 945.26 1,550.9) 1,579.30 1529 904.30 910.29 64164
Electric Fittings 469,01 18.30 - 507.1 182.10 94,46 176.56 230,75
Vehicles 13,102,646 96.20 2,764.97 10,433.90 9,441.78 571.30 2,625.9% 7,189.13 3,044.77
Total 125,165.39 37,898.11 5,012.53 155, 797.97 24,116.71 B,817.53 4,474.47 18,459.78 129,591.19
March 31, 2024 ;
| Particulars Gross block Accumulated depreciation et block
ing Balance as at Additions Deletion Closing balance as at Opening Balance as at | Depreciation for the Deletion Closing balance as at As at
April 1, 2023 August 08, 2023 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023 August 08, 2021 year March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024
{Holding Company) {Subsidiary® I w C (Subsidiary*
Company) Compary)

Right to use - Leasehold Land (refec note a) - 17,048.99 17,048.99 - 46.35 = 46.35 17,002.64
Land & Buildings - 23,939.60 - 13,939.60 . - - - 13,919 .80
Plant and Equipment 16,164 85 9,823.40 9,911.20 460,00 £5,545.45 2,574.08 3,998.77 4, 55044 65.01 11,166.38 54, 381,07

.o 1,144.01 176.34 . 1,652.07 144,63 1,012.73 153.08 - 1,310.44 181.63
Furniture & Fixtures 716,95 w7 18233 1,206.44 114.67 189.69 104,00 38836 ns.08
Office Equipment 9.8 1,401.74 61.62 215747 206.56 1,185.45 187.29 * 1,579.30 577.87
Electric Fittings 270.50 ¥ 198.51 4590 97.47 a B3 18290 1869
Vehicles . 12,984, 77 115.89 . 13,1006 - 8, B0 w998 - 9,443.78 3,658.88
Total 28,317.81 49,502.71 A7,804.87 480.00 125,165.39 313N 14,810.44 6,231.57 65.01 2411671 101, B8
Refer note 2{a) of the Corsolidated financial statement.
Motey
#) During the previous year, the Holding Company has taken a land on lease from Yamuna Exp y Industrial Autharitses (YEIUA) for the purpose of setting up Blochemistry Analyser under Industrial Scheme of YEIDA, The term of the leasehald lard 1 for the period of 90 years, As

per the lease term, the Company has pakd lease pr

of Ps. 6,712.62

payable by the Compamy, During the current year, the Company has fully paid the balance irstallments of leashold land,
b The Plant and Equipments include the mssets having & Gross block of Rs. 83,912.24 theunands (Met Block Rs. 69, 177.45 thousands) held with third parties [Previcus year: Gross block of Rs. 51,749.35 thousands (et Block Rs. 45,001.95 thousands ).

<) All Plant and Equipments and Land & Building are hypocated against term loan from the banks. (Refer Note 6)

dj Also, refer note 41

upfront and the balance amount i payable in 10 equal ball -yearly installments of Rs. 1,030.47 thousands each commencing October 17, 2023, The Deferred payment labilities represents the balance lease premium
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14. Caplital-Work-In Progress (CWIP)

March 31, 1025 March 31, 2024
Particulars Opening balance as Additions during the Capatalised during Closing Balance as at| Opening balance as As at Additions during the Capatalised during Closing Balance as at)
at April 01, 2024 year tthe year March 31, 2015 at April 01, 2023 August DB, 2023 year the year March 31, 2024
Building under canstruction 280.00 45111 46,191,11 = * 280.00 S 280.00
Tatal 280.00 45,911.11 = 46,191.11 = = 180.00 - 180.00
14.1 Aging of Capital work In progress as below :
As at March 31, piire]
Amount In CWIP for a period of Total
Capiial work
e Less than 1 year 12 years 23 yoars More than 3 years
Projects in progress - Bullding 4591111 280.00 £ - 46,191.11
Total 45,911.11 280.00 - = 46,191.11
As at March 31, 1014
Cani Amount in CWIP for a of Total
RIS prod Less than 1 year 1-2 years 1-3 years More than 3 years i
Projects in progress - Buil ding 160.00 - - = 280.00
Total 180.00 . - - 280.00

14.2 The Company does not have ary CWIP which is overdue or exceeded to its cost compared to its original plari,

eee- The space has been intentionally left blank -
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(Al in Rs. Th unless otherwise stated)
Goodwill on Consolidation As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Goodwill on Consolidation [refer note 2(a)] 1,445,86 1,445.86
1,445 86 1,445.86
Non-current investments
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unquoted investment, non-trade, at cost
- Investment in Gold 274,63 274.63
TOTAL 174.63 274.63
Aggregate book value of unquoted non-current investments 174.63 274.63
Aggregate book value of quoted non-current investments and market value thereof - +
Aggregate provision for diminuation in value of non-current investments - -
There are no significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds of disposal.
Long term loans and advances As at As at

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Capital advance”

March 31, 2025

11,101.77

March 31, 2024

5,798.42

11,101.77

5,798.42

"includes an amount of Rs 6817.93 thousands (Previous year : Rs 5,798.42 thousands) paid by the Holding Company in respect of an Industrial

Bandu Nivesh Mitra at Greater Noida for a lease period of 90 years as per allotment letter dated October 16, 2020.

Land alloted under Udyog
Out of total value of land, Rs. 6,817.93 thousands

(including interest of Rs,1,064.03 thousands) has been pald by the Company as on March 31, 2025 and balance amount is payable in 2 half yearly installments of Rs 506,59
thousands and Rs 486.74 thousands due June 15, 2025 and December 15, 2025 respectively. The possession of the land is yet to be recefved.

Other Non-Current Assets
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Security Deposit 3,577.00 3,443.50
Fixed deposits with banks with more than 12 months maturity* 237.37 2,602.19
% 3,814.37 6,045.69
‘represents the fixed deposits hypothecated/liened against loan and bank guarantee
Inventories (Valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower) As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw Materials and packing material 9,685.40 9,932.75
Work-in-progress 10,597.15 640.21
Finished goods 12,603.66 3,990.15
Stock-in-trade 97,826.24 109,390.93
130,712.45 123,954.04
Trade receivables As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
considered good 172,105.57 80,907.51
considered doubtful 1,458.99 149.72
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (1,458.99) (145.72)
172,105.57 80,907.51
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Notes to € lidated Financial Stat

for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN- U74999DL2019PLC359158
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2025:-

Balances with banks
-On current account

Cash on hand

Other Bank Balances:

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 menths and remaining

maturity upto 12 months*

March 31, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of pay

Lﬁ“:n;m . 5 Tz:!' 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables 140,988.65 11,873.71 4,893.2% 3,486.43 7,904.68 169,146.76
1i) Llndisputzé.:?rmde Receivables - - . 22.29 11.41 33.70
considered doubtful
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables 653.41 536.00 1,202.89 566.51 2,958.81
considered
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables = 5 515.52 B845.77 60.00 1,425.29
considered doubtful
Total 141,642.06 12,409.71 6,611.70 4,925.00 7,976.09 173,564.56
Less: Provision for doubtful debts - = (515.52) (872.06) (71.41) (1,458.99)
Total trade receivables 141,642.06 12,409.71 6,096.18 4,052.94 7,904.68 172,105.57
Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule as at March 31, 2024:-

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

L';‘ﬂ::: § 5 :“:::" 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
{1} Undispoted Trade Recsivabins 9,435.96 48,631.08 13,898.26 2,952.83 5,989.38 80,907.51
considered
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables = L 22,29 127.43 149.72
considered doubtful
(fii) Disputed Trade Receivables e - - -
considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - -
considered doubtful
Total 9,435.96 48,631.08 13,920.55 3,080.26 5,989.38 81,057.23
Less: Provision for doubtful debts - 5 (22.29) (127.43) c (149.71)
Total trade receivables 9,435.96 48,631.08 13,898.26 2,952.83 5,589.38 80,907.51
Cash and cash equivalents As at As at

March 31, 2024

40,644,67 917.63
1,353.76 539.64

7, 366.74 2,110.80
49,365.17 3,568.07

*Includes fixed deposit of Rs 3,000.00 Thousands (Previous year : 2,000.00 Thousands) deposited as a collateral security and Rs 210.80 Thousands [Previous year: Rs 110.80

Thousands) held under lien.

Short term loan and advances

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Advance to suppliers
Advance to Employees

Balance with government authorities

Eamest Money Deposits
Prepaid Expense*
Other Loan & advances

* includes cost related to probable future SME IPO expenses of Rs 1,538.62 thousands (Previous year : Rs Nil)

Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Interest accrued on fixed deposits

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1,925.29 1,861.90
920.32 37.05
10,871.87 16,284.59
168.45 543.24
1,655.48 60.44
3,101.65 2,584.71
18,643.06 21,371.93
As at As at

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

897.50

602.75

897.50

602.75
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

CIN- U74999DL2019PLCI59158
{All amounts in Rs, Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Sale of Service

Other Income

Interest income;
~On bank deposit
Net gain on foreign currency transaction and translation
Export Incentives
Other incentives and discounts
Liability no longer required written back
Gain on sale of property, plant it equipment
Insurance claim
Proceeds on maturity of keyman insurance policy
Miscellaneous income

Cost of materfal consumed

Raw Materials and packing material

Opening stock

Add: Purchases

Less: Closing stock

Cost of material consumed and packing material

Purchases of Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade

Closing stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Stock-in-Trade
Total

Opening stock
Finished goods
Work-in-progress
Stock-in-Trade
Total

Net decrease/ (increase) in inventories

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages

Contribution to Employees Provident Fund & Other funds (refer Note 35)
Gratuity Expense (refer Note 35)

Staff wellare expenses

Finance cost

Interest on:

-term loan from banks

-cash credit from banks

-working capital loan

-deferred payment liablity

-credit card

-payables to micro and small enterprises
delayed pay af st y dues
delayed pay of suppl

Other Borrowing Costs:

-Loan processing charges

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
451,015.88 139.040.12
1,343.50
452 3159.38 239,640.12
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
379.57 328.25
88.22 -
1,138.12 19.15
3,934.69 3,094.85
256,98 172.39
. 65.01
66.08 .
652.82 .
208.17 406.76
6,725.05 4,086.41
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
9,932,75 4,406.78
32,774.37 19,040.41
9,685.40 9,932.75
33,021,72 13,514.44
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
244,618.79 190,665.33
244, 618.79 190,665.33
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
12,603.66 3,990.15
10,597.15 640.21
97,826.24 109,390.93
121,027.05 114,021.29
3,990.15 3,727.01
640.21 29.68
109,390.93 61,962.31
114,021.29 65,719.00
(7,005.76) (48,302.29)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
30,529.79 18,491.77
735.64 600.34
236,22 103.23
604.12 246,50
32,105.77 19,442.24
—
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4,382.50 2,618.45
7.214.07 5,749.24
598.93 =
457.84 *
3.88 15.26
464,22 299.74
7.65 36.48
0.7 43.32
1,029.79 322.06
14,159.59 3,084.56
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(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

311 Depreciation expense For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 13) 8,817.53 6,233.57
_8&1 7.53 2‘_‘.’33.57
32 Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Business promotion 10,134.33 4,094.47
Legal and professional expenses* 3,061.92 3.623.79
Rent {Refer Note 34) 3,948.9¢ 3,076.33
Discount Expense 3,157.28 1,342.10
Travelling expenses 5,899.42 4,404.93
Freight & Cartage 2,343 65 1,396.18
Power & fuel 1,454.53 1,121.05
Printing and stationary expenses 246.38 555.01
Bank Charges 378.95 288.45
Commission 20.89 389.47
Cffice expense 481.11 306.65
Postage & courjer 216.56 123.04
Rates & taxes 401.85 155.88
Insurance 225.53 54.43
Repairs

-To Machinery 262.51 53.48
-To others 198.20 4342

Director’s Sitting Fees 130.00 -
Testing & validation expensas - 3|.m

Provision for doubtful debts 1,365.29 -
Het loss on foreign currency transaction and transiation - 83.13

Het loss on Sale of property, plant & equipment 138.58 -
Miscellaneous expenses 763.03 1,272.7%
34,9&2_ zziu 8.34

* Includes professional fees paid to a relative of a director (Director w.e.f August 23, 2014) Rs 706.45 Thousands (Previous year: Rs 1,015,00 Thousands)

32a Prior Period ltems For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Prior period expenses ;-
Director remuneration for the period Jan-Mar 2024 750.00 -
750.00 -

-+ The'space has been intentionally left biank -----
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lidated Financial 5t for the year ended March 31, 2025
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(All amounts in Rs. Thousands, uniess otherwise stated)

Naotes to G

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as per Micro, Small and Medi Enterprise Devel Act, 2006-
Particular Asat As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year included in:
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 10,185.95 12,976.57
- Interest due on above . 88.81
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the 606.37
supplier beyond appointed day.
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointment day .
during the period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act, 200, ’
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 207.56 349. 1
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 9.35 9.35
actually paid for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,
Note: The information furnished asbove has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified based on information availabie with the M
Leases:
The Group has lease arrangement for the office and factary premises. The leases are both cancellable and non-cancellable and ranges for the period from 3 to § years.
Lease recegnised in the G d st of Profit and Loss in respect of all leases 3,545.96 3,076.33
With respect to non-cancellable lease, the future lease pay are as fol

As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Not later than ane year 0.9 E
Later than one year and not later than five years o =
Later than five years .
4) Defined Contribution Plans
The Group makes contributions, detarmined as a specified percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying Aoy ds P and employee Insurance Funds, which are

defined contribution plans. The contributions are charged to the Consolidated Statement of
contributions. The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident fund

b) Defined Benefit Plans

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has ¢ !

Profit and Loss as they accrue. The Group has no obligation other than to make the specifisd
for the year aggregated to Rs. 735.64 Thousands (Previous year: Rs. 600,34 Thousands).

Tive years or more of service gets a gratuity on separation or retirement at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for

each compieted year of service or part thereof in excess of six months. The fol g Lables the comp of net benefit recognized in the G S af Profit
and Loss and the amounts recognized in the C balance sheel for gratuity plan.
Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/Hability on Gratuity plan
i E: R ised in the C idated § of Profit and Loss for the year
Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2025
Current service cost 553.90
Past service cost 306,34
Interest cost 170.21
Met actuarial (gain) /loss recognized in the year . (794.22)
Expense gnised in the C fidated S of profit and ioss 236.23
if) Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation ' For the Year ended
March 31, 2025
Denefined Benefit obligation 1,597.43
Fair value of plan assets .
Net (assets)/liablity recognised in Consalidated Balance Sheet 2,597.4
—_— ]
tﬂlﬂwinmmtmdﬂnﬂwmm For the Year ended
March 31, 2025
Opening defined benefit obligation 2,361.20
Interest cost 170.21
Current service cost 553.90
Past service cost 306.34
Benefits paid -
Actuarial (gains}/loss on obligation 1794.22)
Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets =
Closing defined benefit obligation 2,597.43
iv) The principle ptions used in deter ing gratuity For the Year ended March 31, 2025
a) Economic assumptics Holding C " e ¥
i) Discount rate 6.54% 6.71%
if) Future salary increase B.00% 10.00%
iii) Expected Rate of return on plan assets NA N4
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b) Demographic assumptions
i) Retirement age 60 years
11) Withdrawal/ Attrition Rate Holding Company Subsidiary Company
Year 1 A0% 10%
Year 2 o 10%
Year 3 20% 10%
Tear4 10% 10%
Year 5+ 105 10%
1il) Mortality table IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

Amount
Disclosed as * As at

March 31, 2025

-Long Term Provisions (refer nota 8) 1,247.56
-Short Term Provisions (refer note 12) 349.87

Note: This is being first year of applicability of disclosure of AS 15 "Employee Benefits™ in its entirity due to classification of the holding & subsidiary Companies as nan SMC, hence previous year
disclosures are not applicable.

Related party disclosures (as per Accounting Standard-18)*
Names of related parties and nature of relationship:
Related parties where transactions have taken place during the year:

Key Managerial Personnel - M. Dharam Deo Choudhary, Managing Director
3 Mr. Ram Magina Choudhary, Whole Time Director (w.e.f August 23, 2024)
: M, Janardan Pal , Non Executive Director | Executive Director till August 23, 2024 |
3 Mrs. Deepa Choudhary, Director (w.e.f August 23, 2024)
H Mr. Manoj Kumar Agrawal, Independent Director (August 23, 2024 to Navember 29, 2024)
H M. Pankaj Sharma, Independent Director (w.e.f August 23, 2024)
: Mr. Om Prakash Pal, Additicnal Director

Relative of Key M fal Py | H Wr. Kapil Deo Choudhary
: W3, Sumitra Devi
4 Mrs. Geeta Chaudhary
$ Mr. Aditya Pal
3 Mrs, Artf Pal
H Mr. Ayush Pal

Enterprise where KMP has substantial influence 1 Ayush Diagnostics and Surgicals (Proprietorship of Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary)
: Imperative Healthcare Private Limited (Director and Promoter Mrs. Deepa Choudhary)

Trasanctions with related parties during the year: As at

As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(a) Shares lssued
Mr Dharam Deo Chaudhary 3,318.16 .
Mr Ram Nagina Chaudhary 1,165.69 -
4,583.85 -
(b) Share Premium Reserve
Mr Dharam Deo Chaudhary 38,158.84
Mr Ram Nagina Chaudhary 14,555.44 -
52,714.28 -
[c) Purchase of investment in equity
M Dharam Deo Choudhary . 41,477.03
Mr Ram Nagina Choudhary = 15,821.20
- 57,298.23
(d) Loan taken from/(repay to) di ]
M. Dharam Deo Choudhary 3,657.40 22,726.00
Mr Ram Nagina Choudhary (17,202.20) 3,281.00
M. Janardan Pal . 1,839.00
(13,504.80) 27,846.00
(e) Legal and Professional Expenses
-+ Mrs. Deepa Choudhary T06.45 1,800.00
(f) Sales
Imperative Healthcare Private Limited 10,043,52 -
Ayush Diagonoatics and Surgicals - 38.98
(4) Purchases
Ayush Diagoncatics and Surgicals
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(n) Remuneration

WM. Dharam Deo Choudhary
Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary
M. Janardan Pal

M. Kapil Deo choudhary
Mrs, Deepa Choudhary
Mrs. Sumitra Devl

Mrs. Geeta Choudhary

M Aditya Pal

Mrs, Arti Pal

Ms. Ayush Pal

{g) Director sitting fees
Mr Janarghan Pal

M Manoj Kumar Agarwal
. Om Prakash Pal

Mr Pankaj Sharma

Balance outstanding at the year end:
Loan Payable

M. Dharam Deo Choudhary

Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary

Me. Janardan Pal

¥ ds purchass
M Dharam Dec Choudhary
Mr Ram Magina Choudhary

Remuneration payable
Mr Dharam Deg Chaudhary
Mr. Ram Nagina Chaudhary
M Janardhan Pal
Mrs Deepa Chaudhary
Mr. Aditya Pal

Director sitting fees payable
M. Janardhan Pal

Mr. Om Prakash Pal

Mr. Manoj Kumar Agarwal

Mr. Pankaj Sharma

Trade Recelvables
Ayush Diagnostics and Surgicals

Hotes to

Avience Biomedicals Limited

Private Limited)

(Fermerly Known as Bi
e i

CIN- U74999DL201
(All amounts in Rs. Thousands,

for the year ended March 31, 2025
9PLC359158
unless otherwise stated)

£,150.00 1,709.68
1,929.03 854.54
1,205.48 1,066.45
T20.00 466,45
1,578.07 215.48
696,00 221.45
232.00 221.45
112.16 -
636,00 121.45
. 8.7
13,318.74 5,015.98
45.00
10.00 .
30.00 -
45.00 -
130.00 =
16,423.43 22,726.00
1,900,00 3,281.00
1,839.00 1,839.00
30,162.43 27,846.00
. 41,477.03
- 15,821,20
- 57,298.23
1,670.24 -
197.73 #
154.08 -
1,024.95 -
30.50 -
4,117.50 -
40.50 -
27.00 .
5.00 -
40.50 -
117.00
1,328.62 4,464,854

“The Information has besn determined to the extent such parties have been identified by the management on the basis of information available with them.

Mote: Key management personnels i.e Mr. Dharam Deo Choudhary, Mr. Ram Nagina Choudhary, M Janardhan Pal, Mrs Deepa Choudhary and their relatives |.e. Mr Kapil Dec Chaudhary, Mrs Geeta
Choudhary, Mrs. Sumitra Chaudhary have given personal guarantees against Cash Credit facilities avafied from bank, Refer Note 9.

Earning per share- Basic and diluted
Particulars

Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent(A}

Total shares outstanding as at the end of the year

Units

Amount Rs. Thousards

No's

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (8) No's

Basic and diluted earning per share (A/B) (Rs.)

Nominal value per equity shares

Rs.
Rs.

Note: The Company does not have any potential dilutive eguity shares at the year end,

=«==+ The space has been intentionally left blank ----

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
70,950.41 21,585.21
4,031,256 3,284,500
3,793,890 3,284,500
1871 6.57
10.00 10.00
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3B Unhedged foreign currency exposures
Foreign currency exposure of the company that is not hedged by derivative instruments or other wise as on March 31, 2025 are as under

r—PnrtI:uIJrs As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
in Fo Amaunt Amount Amount
& "'lr"'aoo‘ i {in INR ) (000} {in Foreign Currency)('000) (In INR ) (000}
Trade Receivable
United States Dollars 358.15 30,758.38 15.00 1,247.90
Foreign Currency Demand Loan
United States Dollars - 481.71 39,998.07
39 Contingent i and i As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(2) Estimated value of contracts on capitsl account excluding capital advances, remaining to be executed and not provided for 10,072.05 1,B87.60

{b} Contingent Hability:
« GST Matters 3.715.58

The subsidiary compary has received & demand notice of Rs. 3,715.58 Thousands plus interest towards GST for Financial Year 2017-18 against which the subsidiary company has paid Rs, 422,23
Thousands under protest, The Company Is in the process of filing an appeal with the higher authorities,

40 Additional Information

As required by paragraph 2 of General i ion for prep of C i Financial 5t as per Schedule Il to the C fes Act, 2013:
March 31, 2025
Name of the Entity Met Assets Share in Profit and Loss
(Total Assets - Total Liabilities)
As % of Consolidated Amount As % of Consalidated Net Amount
Net Assets Assets
A: Holding company T 164,014.00 9% &, 714.08
8: Subsidiary - DR Meditech Surgical & Disgnostics (india) Private Limited (59,99%) 8% 62,581.26 Nz 64,276.32
Total 100% 126,597.26 1005 70,990.40
March 31, 3034
Name of the Entity Net Assets Share in Profit and Losi
(Total Assets - Total Liabilithes)
As % of Consalidated Amount As % of Consolidated Net Amount
Net Assets Assets
A: Holding company rik] 13,250.08 -530% ~10,777.89 |
B: Subsidiary - DR Meditech Surgical & Diagnostics (India) Private Limited (99.99%) 9% 49,012.26 150% 32,363.10
Total 100% 62,262.34 100% 21,585.21

41 During the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Group has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment.

42 During the years ended March 11, 2025 and March 31, 2024, the Group has not granted any loans or advances to promaters, directors, KMPs and the related parties as defined under Companies
Act, 2013,

43 During the years ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024, no proceedings have been initiated or pending against Lhe group for holding any benami property under the Benami Tramsactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

44 Quarterty returns or statements of current assets filed by the Group In respect of borrowings fram banks are In agreement with the books of account.

45 During the year ended March 11, 2025 and March 31, 2024 the Group is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
46 The management confirms that the Group had no transcation with any struck off companies during current and previous year,

47 The Group has no pending charges or satisfaction which are o be with ROC (pr year: Nil)

48 The group has complied with the number of layers of companies,

49 The Group did not have any such transaction which & not recorded in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the perfod In the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961,

50 Mo funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other source or kind of funds) to any other personis) or entity|ies), including foreign entities
ries) with the und h recorded in writing or otherwise) that the intermediary shall
{a) directiy or Mwwﬂy'lendnrlmmthmm persons or entitles Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security o the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

51 No funds have been received from any person's) or entity(les), including foreign entitles (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded In writing or ctherwise) that the Group shall
(a] directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entitles identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfl of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries,

52 The Group has not traded or invested in crypte currency or any virtual curmency during the current and previous vear,
53 (a) As clarified by the MCA vide General Circular No. 39 / 2014 dated 14th October 2014 and as per the ™ Gemllllqwm under paragraph 13.1 of the "Guidance Mote on Division | - Mon ind

AS Schedule 1l to the Companies Act 2013° muhyueluihmm:ul’wmnhnol' J d fi the Company has elected to avail the exemptions from certain
disclosures as avaflable in the preparation of i financial gy, in respect of Analytical ratio, payment to auditors and value of impart on CIF basis are
not made in these financial staterments.

(b) * AddiLk i fon” as req to be disclosed under heading Y of paragraph & of Part | and "A inf jon” under paragraph 5(ii} of Part Il of Division | of Schedule i

wr.hu‘.un-mnleskh zuummmummum financial statements are either “Nil” or “Mot applicable” 1o the Group.

As per our report of even date.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Avience Biomedicals Limited
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